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d3060030LM d0H™MBYdM O JomddHhMbydm!

3oLymo Bgmon, yg3erm Bybhoc, dobo IV 330G Homa, P36 9-
390960h™ oym A3960 60630LO O LoJoO®3gmmML Lodeb3m
LobHgdobomazab. 3030em0890m0 AbmEML 93Mbm3dn3zanl
obH™MG 0080 dbgmo dmndgdbgds bgmabyomgdol dbéa -
06 3mb3MgHYm 33 OHEYM 006389 3memahnzyncoo dm-
H03060 900 89bmeab sbogmmao.

doh™bo d0dnbo 03060830¢mab dng® 2011 Bemab 7 mghma-
96OL LogPMoMn, dALMMYHYMoE 306MbogGn o Loxy-
d3em0obo 3mmoahnzn®o 9800309000 LoBmaomgdabomaal
309303690006 M0EOL 00630 ndymgdymao gobeo, bosy-
060 byM3z0emal LobnboOMAEIzME, oOLYMmMaym M30m-
30006MAg- bobomzal dGdmmab Gg3z083g. 3aM3oMHgMOLL
0O mYm9dLb ab gocmgamaods, H™A 306306 Bnboomadna dm-

30O MY o ©3MJ3dg5d9mns dmgma bobgmabygemgdm
dobgobo.
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ADDRESS OF THE CHAIRMAN
OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD
AND THE DIRECTOR GENERAL

Ladies and Gentlemen!

Last year, more precisely put - the fourth quarter of 2011,
was unprecedented for our Bank and for the overall banking
system of Georgia, as such politically motivated government
pressure on a commercial bank can hardly be found
throughout the history of World Economics.

Since the 7th of October 2011, when Mr. Bidzina Ivanishvili
made public his legitimate and well-grounded political
ambitions, the Bank had to start a struggle for survival.
Cartu Bank JSC found the entire State mechanism operating
against it.

It was not the deterioration of the Bank’s financial standing
or the quality of its service, but government pressure
that brought about a mass migration of its clientele to
other banks, resulting in the outflow of 45 million GEL in

Lb3go 80639030 3m0gbhGab dobmdG N30 dngcoEns, Modo3
dbmmme mghmaddGab dgmég bobgazo®dn 45 dogmambo
o0l gonbgds godmanbzns, Lobgmaobm my bb3d 3GIm-
99960l 3964390, Lb3go JoGmymoa 3m3gMEnymoa d0b3g-
60b 3bG0gob LU ,,00630 JoOMY“-LMOb MO653IOMIMMdAL
dgbybhgdo my, bogHmme, 3obyzgho, dbmmme bgmabyos-
m™9060L 3bG0Eob Bgbmmamod gobdnMmdgdyman o d6Md
60630L 530606LYM0 IEaMmId>MgMOL goyocgbgdaom ob dma-
LobyG 90l boGabbab OEgdnm, MOE MIOMBIMMNZ ©OO-
oYM JoOmymo Lodmagowmaydal Boomdo mghHmadgc-
bm3ddgMa8n dboMoga®al bhndoyGoe dmdmEgbgdymadd
1369390960 ™ 993008, MMEaLLE POH™MAb bobdmammy 39 -
0m©dn 23 000Ldd dmJoeoggad 006330 goblbo bLnddmeny-
60 5600060, OMIML bLogH MM MO6bYd MnmMJdanl 3 dogmom-
60 motn 8go30bo.

G0Pm0Y, 3900mambngMgdal doME3omo 03m3m 18 mg-
H™3d96L d0630b BnbodMdga LoBMZoMgdabmazal bodnda
mM30m gobbm®Engmgdym L3gm3gMopnodn, Mmpabog
A396L dmmoMngdbo o 0b3obohmMmadl LodoGmagmmb
00630L d96mod0d0n yohomy®o Boocmm3gL 2 dngmambo 33
MM, 1 dogmambo 936G ™ o Lonbzobognm dobgobo o3y -
™0l 3omgmn© 930 ddLMEYHHMOE d0LYOEYN dGVMEIdNM.

the second half of October; the termination of salary or
other projects; and the dwindling or ceasing of collaboration
by the other Georgian commercial banks. A spontaneous
public support campaign in October and November, when
23 thousand Georgian citizens opened symbolic accounts
with the Bank - amounting to three million GEL - in such
a short period of time, is just another piece of evidence
to this end.

A special operation against the Bank, on the 18th of October,
2011 defies reason: on an absurd charge of money laundering,
2 million USD and 1 million EUR, along with an armored
collection van, were taken away from our tellers and cash
collectors on the Bank of Georgia premises.

At the end of October, the top legislative body joined the
anti-Cartu campaign. On the 28th of October, 2011, the
Georgian Parliament made changes to the law “On
Enforcement Proceedings” and the Tax Code, which were
non-civilized and were detrimental to the Georgian economy
and the country’s international image. The result of the
selective and unjust application thereof was that, in less
than 2 months, and while no other bank was affected by
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®mJhm3dMm0L dmmmL 006308 LoBNbsOMAEIz™ J390g090d0
Rogmm 939460L Pdomemagbo Lo3VbMbIEIdeMM MMZobm,
MH™3gmdo3 28 MmJhm3dgeMb dnomm dgho vGMoEn300mBgdY-
™m0, JoOmYmo 93mbmadnznbo o Lobgmaboxmb bLogGome-
dmMobm 0doFol dgdgmobogn 33¢mnemgdgd0 ,LooMbMYEMgdm
bogdgmo BoM3mgdal dgbobgd” 306MbLO o bdgoobobopm
3m099bd0, OmIgmmo dgMhAg30m0 o vGBIoMNMBM3ngMn
39dmynb63000 dbmemmeE MG dMOLGOYM M3980 O dbmm
LU ,,00630 JoMmy“-3 O30M3d 104 dngmombo ©33 Mmool
™096m00b mobbal gnMomdn Aogdyema Jmbgdo, Mol godm
06098 b3gmymagnemn o, dgbodedobog, P396OHL3gdHn3m
30bo 63 dogmombo Mool dmEymmonb 3Mgwahgdn.

obgm 30006793030 VILMMYHYMOE dMO3MBLAHMYIZ0YMO
3mB30300 003030 LogoM®39emMmML gMm3byemds d063dv,
MHmdgemadoE bogamo ndabo, HmAd dbotMo ogdnMo yLbo-
dommmme ohog®mymoa d0b30bom30lL, mo3o dmgdise
ombdbyomn, 3meohnzyMo 06307g0Mgdymo, d3g6mmab
930396(hM30. 93O MM gdd Mo bgmabynmgdal y306mbm
0y Ybododmmm §39090900, §399b0b 396HMOMYM0 00630
0030003 0JH0yMo Rghomm 3m3ge oy 306306 bobo-
600393 M 30doMH MY 3MMEgLdn, dom MG, §96 300093
®gh™adM0L 3go MoEb3gddn obygdymmo, 93Mgm bmgdymo,
d99m639000, MMIgemag, 3oJH™MOM0390, PMMIdNMN vd0-
BobhMoEnab Mg7030l gobbmGEngmgdes, MoE 30Modnt
9606000393900 MMaMOE JoOmym bLddOb3M 306Mb3o-
mmodl, 01939 30306m08907 LOOODIM 3GOJhH03oL.

gm39mn39 893mmgdymads PBo®mavdomn oM hyds dnoygbo
00630L 030606LYM FEaMBOMJMOOL - BoJhMdGMN300, Byom-
do Boygo®o 3bGo m30L bowzobo o bogzmom 17-18 don-
0mbo gmatol dmggonbo, Byemo Rogzedmo3Mgm 68 dngmom-
60 Mmool BoGomom, 09hn3900bo o Loz gEahm SmbAd -
09mob EOedohymo dgdEnMgdonm.
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the legislative and tax changes, Cartu Bank )JSC lost
pledged assets worth 104 million USD, leaving 63 million
lari’'s worth of loans unsecured.

In the above scenario, the National Bank of Georgia took
an unconstructive stance and, instead of supporting the
unjustly harassed commercial Bank, it took center stage
in the politically motivated pressure campaign. Justifying
the illegitimate and unfair deeds of the Government, the
central bank of the country became actively involved in
the process against the commercial bank: in mid-October,
it started an “inspection” - actually nothing short of
a temporary administration, which contradicts both
Georgian banking legislation and international banking
practice.

All the aforesaid caused huge damage to the Bank’s
financial position: all our efforts of the previous nine
months were wasted and, instead of an anticipated 17-18
million GEL profit, we ended 2011 with a loss of 68 million
GEL and a dramatic reduction in our assets and credit
portfolio.

2012 is going to be marked by a struggle for survival. We
view it as our duty to not only preserve the Bank but to
also make it more efficient and stable.

| believe that, for the time being, international publicity is
the only way forward. We should wage an active information
campaign so that not a single international financial institution
remains indifferent towards the voluntarism against us.

Itis also a part of our strategy to broaden the range of our
bank products and services. It will make JSC Cartu Bank

2012 690 m30m3oeMAgbabomaznl 06 dmmal Bymo od -
6900 o A3960 30eMNY, JoMOM 3300MNB030YM0 O MO3O-
©9070m0 bdgdnobmdNm dG ot H™m 893060GAYbMmm d0630,
0603900 IOM LEYYMBNN O JEZMOEN ozboma ngon.

03 PLOFOONMMILMOL dGdMModn LBME, godoGmmgdnem
30000 03 g¢hodBg dgbobgdo A3gbn 3GIMOMdgdal 0bhaGbo-
30mbogmnBogns - ¥bo 3060M3mmm abgmo dghoyco Lonb-
QMOIdE0m 30330600, MOMA 39603 gM®m3d LogOMOdmEbM
LOx3NbObLM 0BbLAHNHH3S 396 39demmL MG 0ELb 333000
2996mL 3000mnbhoG0daL, MMmIgmbog H3gblb Bnboomdwga
030m9696. 3gmM g dbn3, Y6 o303MV30MBYIMOM3bmMmm bo-
0063m 36MMEYIH00, 3o30030MMNM3M® dMmdLobyMgdal otgo-
™0, M3 bozemgdo dmbyzmol gobnb 0063L o dma33gaLb
d9bodemgdmMYLL, 9¢300306Mmm Bo3MgEohM MM AHBImmab
0009335360 3MEHEMdL, dgbododnbo B30bobbytn dgc939d00.

b, 9396 1339 ®bYMIgHBNobo dm3069mdnb 89093060,
A396 yoyme bgmazgbngggdo MmG03g dndoGmymgdal Mgo-
m0BoEne, 30m YMM, O™A3 3G0¢H03nmds LohyoEnod JBROH™
dh3039 dgoEymods 006306 3mmaggdhozn, 8969130300600
0dx3Ydbgdmal 03060bby®ds 0bgJ30g0do O, MO dmo3e-
600, 3h 3039 3068M0b303, 6900Lb3ngMn 306mbagen 3gdnom dgg-
BoGAYBYONbO 00630, goodmngMo MBIgbs, MmI A396 dogm-
330db 606 oM3n3Im YPLOIOOMMMOLL, ©3dLmOb P339
339936 o3 my n3b603365cmm 3MmBoghoyMo 399z3900: dob3IL
07066 g3emab omgmMgdal dmhn300 P396mbme Ao -
dmO®dgyemo mobbgdn o Lonbzobopnm v3hmdobdobs, 3y -
3999600 dbogmo 3G M©ngho - 0bhaMbahymo HGHo6doJi30-
0L pLlogGmbmgdal Ly®zabo o, Moy dmozoMnd, dob3n
Lo 16oMANBYdL JoMmym bodobzm Loz®mEgdn mngz3n-
Mol y3gemodg domoem 3oA396989emb o y3geme 3Gwgb-
30em dmmbm3zbob sbMYEgdLb 36033690mm3060 M989G300m,
603 dmdoz300m0 BoM3o(hgdgd0L dgoMon boxygydzgeno. m

less vulnerable and restore the volume of it's credit portfolio
and adequate financial results.

We believe that the Bank’s positive record of 15 years
makes both tasks feasible. The hard times have made the
staff a more intensely bonded team, and this, as well as
financial injections from the shareholder, along with his
resolve to preserve the Bank, convinces us that we will
be able to resist the injustice. Our efforts have yielded
some positive results: the sums appropriated on the
money laundering charges, and the collection van, have
been returned to us; we have created a new banking
product: Internet Transaction Security Service; and, most
importantly, the Bank still retains the highest liquidity
index in the Georgian banking sector, meeting all the
prudential requirements with a large reserve; a sure
safeguard to future success. m

2k

bmoM Fo30bndznmon
LOdgM30mMyyYMgm LOdFML MO33FEMIvMg
0 3969GomyM0 womgdhmeo

Nodar Javakhishvili

Chairman of the Supervisory Board
And Director General
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0063006 30L0D BANK’S MISSION

aM3WJI BN656LIGO 3N3MLNW3D
BRIEF FINANCIAL OVERVIEW

A3960 d0bLooo, pdommgln bocabbab ggdbimyBdoyca bo- Our mission is to make a significant contribution to the
530656Lm dM3LObYM7daL 3dam, obbozymegdyema Bgemo- development of the country’s various economic sectors GELO00
mo J930006mm g3946al 3603369mm3060 OMZJdL by providing the highest quality of exclusive financial 2008 2009 2010 2011
39630006 93030. services.
dmnsbo odhnzgdn 636 863 503 575 571287 388,252
Total Assets
63dnbo bgbbgodn 370 926 366 898 408 089 256,152
A3360 00630L dNGHNMOX0 CORE VALUES Net Loan Portfolio
domnobn 30mEdymgdgdn 513 094 367 318 399 501 232,788
96533@0)6360 OF THE BANK: Total Liabilities
bog3mBahm dmMHggmo 255 378 110 449 84 770 77,306
+ domomn boGalbol 3mdLobycgds o mommgymo * Providing the highest quality of service Total Deposits
3m096¢h0bodn MMmodmMy©0 OIM3ZNEIIPMIOY; and loyalty to every client; boodanm 3030¢homn 123 769 136 257 171 786 155,464
+ bodOb3M 3OMEYIHIdL LEYMmYMBnmn + Offering streamlined and diverse packages Equity
369350089OM3360 3539¢0; of banking products; byew, 393mbagemgdn 65 531 77 708 83 867 77,398
e 3madb3oMmydgmBg MG 39dmn MobodgEdOmzg o * Ensuring “client-centric” and innovative Total Revenues
060330960 BobobLYO0 3oo6y3H0wdgde; financial solutions; byew, baGygdn 50 827 65 924 48 338 141,199
* 3Ohmaagbomboemon 300G gd0. * Maintaining experienced and innovative staff. Total Expenses
630bgoo dmggoo/Botogman 14 704 11 784 35529 -63,801
Net Profit/loss
00b603dOrMIgemmo HomEybmos 274 275 299 296
Number of Employees
LOBIMN3OWYIGIM LOdSM SUPERVISORY BOARD bodgom B0g6n 33000 115178 111175 123 589 146,085
Average Capital
BoEo® §o35badzamao Mr. Nodar Javakhishvili bodyomm Bemoy®on vghngzgdo 446 779 491 391 497 743 515,138
139N YNAIM LddEML M3dFEMBSMY Chairman of the Supervisory Board Average Annual Assets

3800 omEyO
Lodgm3zomyyMgm Ldddmb 69360

0Mo3mo moMandddznmo
Lodgm3zomMyyMgm Loddmb 69360

Q331G IIdIT0 3363533600

bmo® §o30bndznmo
39696 0my6M0 odmgdhmen

bodhm bonbMogzo
396960myM0 wa®mgdhmeab 3063900 dmoanmy

03300 3omMyodznmn
396960my6M0 eo®mgdhmeab dmoanmy
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Ms. Mzia Todua
Supervisory Board Member

Mr. Irakli Garibashvili
Supervisory Board Member

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Mr. Nodar Javakhishvili
Director General

Ms. Nato Khaindrava
First Deputy Director General

Mr. David Galuashvili

Deputy Director General
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2011 6@0L 83©JI3I60

bLo3MgEnh™ Eod36cgdd

2011 Bemob 3bMo m30L gobdogmmdodn dob3n bhodomy-
o 30000090MEY. 3603369mM3060 bodNEgd0 Foonc-
30 dm3bobyMgd0L boGobbab goydsmdgbgdabe o 3MmGO3MmEe-
3090 30m096¢hg00L d080b oGO MMYdalb Mm3omULOdMN-
Loom. 3odmnz3zgme dbgbbgdgmmo MOMEYbmonl BMal
096096300.

2011 Bemab d93mEamdody gobznmoMmgdymon dmeagpo-
30960 dm3mgbgdol gmbBg, 93994obodn gobbmMngmd
LO3ObMBIEIdMM 33090900 bLdaJoOm39emmL Logoo-
bobom 3mEoJLLby O LodoGm3gmmb 306mbBdn Loow -
LEYMdM BoMdmgdome dgbobgd. bygemabygmgdal dogeH
LL “00630 Jomy”-b BnbodMIga RohoMgdym L3gmag-
030030 dmbobogmgmodd dnogmm 60630L 13-do dbgbbg-
09em3do d0869LF3nx8do (byem, 30 3emagbhn). Rohotgdyem
92 bLogoMm oydpombdg goznwo LL “d0b30 Jobrmy”-b
LOLOMZYIMME 13MMY30M/306M036MdNm EOHINO MY
195 g mgymo PdMo3-dmdMo3n Jmbgdo, §9396M0 maMyg-
dymgdom 190 dmb motn, GmImol 100% Lobymadbo-
0m3 39360350 P6o3mm Lobom EobOIYMM. dgwg-
3000, 2012 Bemab | 3300 ¢Homab 3amdoMmgmdnm, 6063L
06098Mnb3gmymanmao EoMAs 125 dmb moMal dmEy-
mmd0b Ld3MIEIHM 30mMEIdIMYd9d0, 0L 3909303
LOdOMObLM 630MNdgdnEob AdIMByGS Loz gEahm
3mOhggmab 28,5%.

2011 Bgmob IV 33060 hoemadn oxgngdbodes 3em0g6¢hgdnb bobo-
mob dngemond Lb3o 3m3gGE0ye 00639630,

693oh0nc0 39093900b 3G9396300L 308b0m, VNGOG 0b-
LoNEIMN 3cmNgbHadaL Ld3MgEIHM 39mMEYdYMYd00L Y-
©9bo bobogmo (byoem, 40 3gmb (MoM0).

2011 6emab dmenmb dogmnoba Bglbgdolb dmEYmMO0d 366
3emb Mmoo, begnem B3nbo Lgbbydalb dmEYm™dSd - 256
dmb mocn 89030bs. dmenoba BgLbgdalb mEabmdy, bo-
6o 69Mmob dx0Mgd0m, 15%-00m, beagmm 6dnbgos bgbbg-
0L mEgbmdd - 37%-0m dgdncs, Mo 05630 dOHLYIM-
0L mbym3dghbmnobn abhmGaol dobdomBdg 306 39mo
d93mbgg300. 63nbd babbgdalb doA396909mmn, G MaMEO3
doemnobo bgbbgdal, vbg39, d9630L 63nbo vghHN3900L 66%-b
303 meno.
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2011 RESULTS

Credit Investment

The nine months of 2011 were marked by the sustainable
development of the bank. Significant steps were made to
improve the quality of services and broaden the basis of
corporate clients. The number of borrowers increased
gradually.

Changes to the Tax Code and the law of Georgia “On
Enforcement Proceedings” were made in connection with the
political developments in autumn 2011. The government’s
special operation against Cartu Bank JSC affected the
bank’s 13 borrower business groups (30 clients in all). 195
movable-real properties worth 190 million GEL, pledged/
mortgaged with the bank, were put out to 92 public
auctions and appropriated by the State-faultless in terms
of existent rights. As a result, in the first () quarter of
2012, 125m GEL in credit liabilities of the bank remained
unsecured and 28,5% of the credit portfolio had to be
written off the balance.

In the fourth (IV) quarter of 2011 some of the bank’s clients
migrated to other commercial banks.

In order to prevent negative results, most of the credit
liabilities (40 million GEL) were paid to insider clients.

By the end of 2011, the total loans amounted to 366 million
GEL and net loans to 256 million GEL. Compared with the
previous year, the volume of total loans had diminished by
15% and net loans by 37%, which was an unprecedented
incident in the 15 years of the bank’s operation. The net
loans equaled 66% of the total loans, as well as of the
bank’s net assets.

The bank’s slogan “Strong Bank for Stronger Georgia”
is integrated into the bank’s credit policy. The slogan
remained true even during the financial crisis, during the
outflow of the clients and during the government’s punitive
operations against the bank. Regardless of the negative
developments, in the reporting period the bank still
managed to meet the NBG credit standards as well as
continuing to maintain the top liquidity ratio in the Georgian
banking sector.

00630L bLemmaobo “demngMo 65630 demog@o bagoOm3gmMmb-
®30b” o0bobgdo 006306 bozMgahm 3mmahnzodoy. Lemm-
3060b $9330G0hade x30bobby®a 30M0Bobob, 3cmngbhgdal
3900069006 o bobgmdbogmb dngc 3obbmGEngmadymo
1393™M396030900b 39009390303 bommoE OdELLEHYMD.
d0ybgo300 6930hnnM0 3 MELYdNLY, 056330 Loobao®nd-
390m 39M0meon LodoMmzgmmb gOH™3bymaoa d0630L dnge
00039600m0 bo3Mgahm bmM3ohnzgdoal LEYMmO EPOE30M
ooLGYM. 930Lmob, 9630 NboMAYBOL (M0 33000MdNL y39-
moBg domom 3oA396909mb JoGmyem Lodobzm bngMEgdo.

LL “06063 JoGOmy”-8n EobgMgamns LozMgpahm bogddnobm-
40 396G Om0Bg0ma bobhgdd, HMIgmbog bygemadmaobs-
™Mb bozMgabhm 300 Hdgbh. 030 373500 00630L
Lomo3m ma30bdn dmgddgn mmba gobymaznemadabe o boggn-
moomm Jugmdn oMLYdYmo Lo3MgEnhm 3obymanmgds-
60Lgob.

2012 Bgemb ogg3adnmons bdzGmgabhm dJhn3monl 360d369-
™mM3060 3oBMs, mdnmMabLo o M930mb5830 bddyomm o
dbbgnemn 60869L0L OXNBOBLYdY ., dbY39, Bgdmm d¢Mbnd-
bymo 0L3g00La0b moznbyxgoman 3gnMg d086gLbal, Lm-
3emab 3996bamdnb o i30803y6M0 30679d0L o 3MgE0Ho0L
19ad9b(hdg, dgbododabog, 3m09bhGNL MomEgbmdnl d9d-
©3m3dn dohnodo.

003609000000 3O MEaLboL LEYMYMaNL, 0bgm@aoanal
Lobhgdohndognal, dbomma Loggnbobbm 0bLHGYIZ6HIONL
203009000 3Bnm, 9630 2012 BEgmab gobdozmmmosdn dndboco
0bobogb 9MLbYdMN o 3MAHIbENG0 3¢m0gbhgdal d086aLAL -
®300L LobyM39tmo 306MO900b 3994860l bgemdgbymdob.

00630b 00369000(H500L dmemagngs LondgEM O oobnb-
9606006 30m096(h90m0b 3gMHdgM3000006 M3 MM MOLL
9dyogdo.

30306069 9Ho3dg bodo®m3zgmmdn an 3603369mmMmodS
96039060 033mGH39333m gm0 o 9Ju3mOHHBg MGNgbhncg-
Oy BoM3mMgdnl dbotoggMol, bybhow gobznmotgdymaoa
Lodyomm 60869L0L o Lol 3gYMbymdnL gobznmody-
00, ®oaob 4394bab 3G omMohghn LdMgE3gm™ 3mHgb -
30oemab ©dmgdg9d0 o dnbn d9303™Mm3n gobznmoMmgdss. m

The Credit Department of Cartu Bank JSC - made up of four
divisions at the Head Office and credit divisions at its
branches - is in charge of centralized credit activities.

In 2012, the bank plans to intensify its credit activities,
which implies funding small and medium businesses in
Thbilisi and the regions; crediting small businesses, the
agricultural sector and natural persons free of risks and,
ultimately, increase its clientele.

By means of streamlining crediting, classification of
information and introducing new financial instruments, in
2012, the bank plans to offer its actual and prospective
clients terms favorable to their businesses.

The bank’s crediting policy relies on long-term relationships
with its reliable and solvent clients.

While the revitalization and development of Georgia’s
industrial potential is a priority for our country, support to
the export-designed production, to as-yet under-developed
medium-size businesses, and to the agricultural sector, is,
the call of the day. m

6306co bgbbgdo * Net Loan Portfolio
(GEL'000)
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ILIA CHAVCHAVADZE
NATIONAL PARLIAMENTARY

LIBRARY OF GEORGIA

LoJoOM39mMML 30O OI7bHb nemno Fo33930dab Ldbgmmoal gEH ™36 dndmammg3d, 013039, Mdamabob
LOFOOM 00dMNM™M Y3, OOV 1846 Byl Mdnealidn dMd30MIdOHMdmAab 306350l dndemomma3al
008089, GmameE ,030mabob bogoMm dndmaommy3zo“. ab 306330 dndmommg3d nym bojoGmzgmman,
M m3gmog bgemdabobzmadn gobo dmbobmgmodal y3gmo i39babmzal.

llia Chavchavadze National Parliamentary Library of Georgia, also known as the Tbilisi Public Library, was founded

on the basis of the library at the office of the Russian Tsarist Governor-General in 1846 and was the first public
library in Georgia.

2005-2010 6emgddn dgbmool MgLhozcmoEns RoyghoMo boghmedmMmabm bogd3zgmamgdgEm Bmbds “Jobmy”.
In 2005-2010, the building was renovated by International Charity Fund “Cartu”.
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®0L3JOOL BOG]DBD

2011 Bgemb bL “00b630 JoMmy”-b gocMIgdm gdobznmoMmgdy-
o 3m3emgbgdnl 39393 M0bigdal doGmzal LEMG0 dm-
moh030b gohoMgos 30093 183G M 3603369¢mm30b0 ob-
0, 3000609 ™EgLdg d0630L 0MOLYdMONL obHMmEModon.
bgemobygemgonl dbGoob gobbm®Engmgdymads P3Mgia-
©096¢h™ LO3OBMbAEgdMM (33eMNEMgdxddo o d0b3LO O
dob 30m096(H9d89 B9bmmod godmanbizns bLozGMgohm dmMm-
Hh3gemob 3603369emm3060 BoBomal gonwolyMgdd o
00 MEIbMINm By bobbMH ool gonbgdy. dmbnd-
Bymobl godm P8GMYb3gmymanl goMgdg oMAs 125 do-
mombo oGl mEgbmdanb bgbbgdn, do630L BoMomad 30
63,8 dogmombo moMo dgoanby. sbgm 30moMgosedn gob-
LOIYNEYOYMN EOH30OM3d F00MM MN33007YOMINLY O
bLozMgohm Gobigdol doMm30d, 3ondoMmo d0630L Gg-
3nbhognol Mobzny. mydgo, dogbgozoE blgbgdymmo dm-
3m96900bo, 006330, dJ3nmbyGaby o dmbobemgmdol
dbotmoggMom o d9695396¢h0b dogmobbdgznm dmobgdmbo
3d99606AY690060 3030homal ©9g330hYO™MINLY O Mn3-
3000960m00b y3gmo bm®3dd o 3¢mngbhgonl dgyxgMbgd-
oo dmdbobyMado.

030M9m37, 3mBohoynco bod0Fgdn gowonwas Lom3ghognm
©0b3900L dom®m30L LobHgdab gobboznmoMmgdmeoc. bogh-
00dmOobm bLognbObLm 3mMIMG oL - International Fi-
nance Corporation - 3mbbym“hognnby o MboddMMmImMmm-
00L 89009390 006330 odLOYMO 3G Mgdho, H™Igmog go-
®30m0bBnbgdgmnd Lom3gMogom Gabzgdabo o d0d67-
bLob P6y390h ™AL doMm3nl oLondsmogbgdmoc. IFC-ab
09dhoneo 3mbobogmgmdnl dgggoe LL “00630 JoMmy”-d
doomBoo Gnb3g00L oM m30b dmeaobo Lobhgdob domom
©Mbal o 00630L Logdnobmdodn Lom3gMmognm Gabzgdal
domm30b 3606303900 300093 IBROM Food3OEM.

LOdOB3M LOJF0obmdnL 39bgEdgbhn nm3omabbnbydl bg-
060L30960 gooEadyemn bodagnl M0b3dg3i339mmdnb Bo-
BobBoM godydagdolb o dgxobgdol. Mabzndal oM m3zo
bmGE0gmEgde LogoGmzgmmb gH™M3bymn d9630L dngM
0303039090 beoM3dohnymo 0Jhodab o LogHmoedmba -
bem 3Goghn30L gomzomalbnbgdnm.

LL “0063 Jomy”-d0 Gabigdal doMm3ab ydommal 3menyg -
300G MMH3gobml BoMdmoaggbl Mabzgdalb oG m3ab
3M300h9h0. 906306 bLogdnobmoodo Mab3gdab doGm30l dg-
Lobgd gooby3zghnmgogdalb doegdabol o domo 3mb-
HOmmabob 3m3nhaho bymddmzobgmmdl Lbodgmzgom-
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RISK MANAGEMENT

In 2011 risk management became more important to Cartu
Bank than ever before, mainly because of the events that took place
around the Bank at the end of the year. The unprecedented
legal changes and pressure on the bank and its clients by the
government of Georgia caused substantial losses on loans
and funds drain. The bank received a total loss of 63,8 million
GEL, with 125 million GEL worth of loans becoming uncollateralized.
Consequently, credit and liquidity management functions
were most stressed and loaded. The bank’s reputational risk
also increased. But despite all the above, with the support of
the owner, management and citizens of Georgia, Cartu Bank
managed to maintain sound capital adequacy and liquidity
levels, as well as a high quality service of its clients.

Additionally significant steps have been taken towards improving
operational risk management. As a result of IFC’s (International
Finance Corporation) consulting and advisory services Cartu
Bank has fulfilled operational risk and business continuity
management refinement project. Thanks to the active
collaboration with IFC, the bank has achieved higher level of
general risk management and deeper penetration of operational
risk management principles in everyday business activities.

The superior collegial body for risk management in Cartu
Bank is the Risk Management Committee. The Committee is
authorized by the Supervisory Board to make decisions
regarding risk management and to control the Bank’s activity.

Below are the functions of the Risk Management Committee:
e Determination of the general risk management strategy
of the bank;

¢ Determination of tolerance of the bank to various risks;
e Approval of risk limits;

Regular control of the risk management process, which
implies at least a quarterly consideration of conclusions
and analyses on positions of the bank's risks provided
by relevant departments - in order to make decisions
about required measures to be taken.

At present a centralized system of risk management is
developed in Cartu Bank and it is managed by Risk Management
Department. The department consists of two divisions:
1) The Financial Risk Management Division - in charge of
credit, liquidity, currency, interest rates and market risk
management. It determines the position limits for specific

gue9m LOOFMb 309G EPIM3nMmgdYMN YRMgdedmbomyg-
09000.

©0b3900L doMm3nl 3mdnhghob iybdizngdne:

* 00b630L M0b3go0b oM m3aL Bdmgown bLhGohgangdal
306LOdM3MY;

*  ULbgogolbgo Gob3gdnb dndoMm 606306 HMEgGObHm-
00b 3obbodmaMo;

* ©0b3gdob mndohgdol odH303900;

*« M0b3gdal domm3zalb 3G MEgLob Mzymodymaon 3mb-
HOmo, o gnmobbdmdl, 3060373, ym3gm 3306 ¢o-
Mo dgbododobo gobymanmgdgdab dogcM d0630L
©0b3900L 3mB030gd0L 0bdMNBLL O OL33690L Logdn-
Mo 4390909006 dgbobgd gowobyzghnemgdal doboe-
©9do0.

006380 0330300 ©EobgGaamd G0L3gonl doGm3ab (396-
Hom0dgdymo bobhgdo, GMIgmbog bgmmaddmaabymmob
©0b3gdolb doMm30L 93O HOdgbhn. gdoMHhodgbho g -
03900 MO0 gobymanmgdnbogob. gbgboo:

1) ®0bobly®o Gobzgdalb doMm30lb gobymaznmagdd - 3y -
©0MgoLb LozMmgEodhm, Mn330YOMONL, Logzomyhm,
LO3OMEIBH™M O LOdIBOM ML3IAL. dbadbyem Mo -
1390006 3033009000 30bdbLYMO M0b3xdab doM-
03006 3obymazngmgdo v39bl 3mBn3ngdal ¢madoggob
o ®0b3go0l oM m30Lb 3MnhgdhL BoGMYPagbL obo-
m0dbo o ol33690L 3MB3MgBhymmo Mobiol Lodom-
00300 bogn®m dmddgegdgdal dgbobgd;

2) Lom3dgGogom Gobzgdab doMm3nb gobymagnmgde - 39-
©0M9g0L gzgmo Lobob Lom3gMogom GLIgOL o of-
H0y6 o d3mbobagmgmol 60630L 0bLHNHYBOMbOMYM
3063000690030, 3OHMEYEYMIOLY o d0BbaLIGM™MB3]-
L9ddn M0L3gdab M3Hndndognnb 3gmbom. Lom3ghosom
©0b3900L doOM30L gobymnmgds ©agbL Lom3gHe-
30om Mobzob madohgdl o Gobzgdob docmm3znlb 3man-
HhooL BoMyagbl 39GomEymm ©obizbgdlb 306330
Lom3gGmoEnm Mobzgdal dEamdocmgmonbo o dab bo-
doOmo300 LognGm dmJdggdgdnl dgbobgd.

obgom L3gENRN3PO M0L3IYOL, HMaMGgdnEdd M93hHognal,
LHGOHI3nymo, bLoOdoOmmgdMmn3n o dgbododobmodab
03900, 39M06O70L 3o 39 - M39GOOE0gd0L obdobmGzon-
3390 9O 99 gonbogab Edmy30EIdgmn gobymao-
m™10900.

risks and submits the analysis and conclusion to the
Risk Management Committee;

2) The Operational Risk Management Division - in charge of
managing all types of operational risks and permanently
participating in the institutional development of procedures
and business-processes of the bank regarding the
optimization of risks. The Operational Risk Management
Division determines the limits for operational risks and
submits to the Risk Management Committee periodical
conclusions about the risk positions of the bank and
required measures to be taken for their management.

The specific risks, such as reputation, strategic, legal and
compliance risks are managed by separate departments
which are independent of the operation conducting units.

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk caused by non-fulfillment of obligations
or by bankruptcy by the counteragent partner. The bank
may be exposed to credit risk as a result of various activities
with its customers, such as granting of credits, treasury
and investment activities and funding of commerce. Before
submission to the Credit Committee, credit applications
are examined, evaluated and risk-rated by the Financial
Risk Management Division which determines the diversification
level of the whole portfolio, permanently updates credit
ratings on the basis of monitoring and evaluation of
effectiveness of whole portfolio taking into consideration
the proportion of risk and profitability.

630bcd 3magdo  Net Profit
(GEL'000)
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DJANSUG KAKHIDZE
TBILISI CENTER FOR

MUSIC & CULTURE

®o0mobolb IgbogomycM-3ambndymo 396G ooMLs 1989 bymb. ngn oMol Bodyzobo Lo3MbggOH™
™mM306080300, ®mIgmag §39460b daoMn dPbnzomyMn HGOoEnEngdab dgboMAnbrdoLo o gobznmocmgdol
9dbobyMgdo. 2002 Bgeml dol dngbogo dabn EododGOLYdIMALS O ymagama 36M38nEIbhal, 3bmdnma
Joem3gmn eaMazmeal §obLym 30badal bobgma.

Djansug Kakhidze Thilisi Center for Music & Culture, founded in 1989, aims at the preservation and furthering of

the country’s long-standing musical traditions. In 2002, it was named after Maestro Djansug Kakhidze, its founder
and first president.

2005-2011 6¢mgddn dgbmool MgLhozcmoEns Royhoco boghmedmMmabm bogd3zgmamgdgEm Bmbds “Jobmy”.
In 2005-2011, the building was renovated by International Charity Fund “Cartu”.
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LO3MICNOM GOLIO

bLozMgodhm Mabin oMol 3MbHGMOgabhn oM HbomMab
3096 39907900l dgnLEYMadmmonm b ozmp®a-
600 3odmb3gymmo Mabzn. bozMaodhm Mobzob BoGHIMIM -
60b 308980 dgbodemmo ngmb Logymo®d 3em0gbhgdmob
Lb3oobbzo Lobol Logddnobmdo, GMamGgdnEdd, dogomon-
000, 303000Hxd0b goEgds, bobodobm o bonb3zglhosom
Logdnobmdo o 303MMO0L ORNBOBLYOS. LozMgEah™
3m30hghobmznl BoMagnbodeg LozMgahm gobogbowlb
30bobogmogl, ox30Lgdl o Mabzob Mgnhobalb oboggdb
30606bG0 Gobigdob doMm30b gobymanmgds. obndby-
mo gobymazngmado, obg3g, ©39bl dmenobn MmO HRY-
ool ©039MLognzoEnal mMbalL, dmbohmGnbazgoal Lo-
039d390mB9 330300 060bmgdL M90hH0b3gdL o vx3oLYOL
30 m0obn 3O HRImlL 93gdhoobmodol Mob3nobmdab o
d93mLO3MNObMONL MObORIOEMONL Zom3oemnlbnbgdnm.

@N330QIGMBOL HOL30

™03300960mo0b Mobin o6ab 60630 Mabzn goalhydemL

300M(09076M 30900 EOmJdYem 3500080. (M033000YMMO0L M0b-

30 04mgd 39393 390930 0gdd:

e LodoBO™M M03300PO M0l Gabzn - bybho LodedOH™
™M033000960Mmd0L 06 d0B0MBg d993bngmo 3G MIM9dg-
00b godm bodEBOHM Qobgdnm goM 3399 3mBoEngdal
oydomoblgdemmdnb Mob3o;

* 030bobLgdNL (Mmn330GOMONL Mabzn - Gobin ndabo,
™3 006330 396 P8MPb3gmMymL vgdHhn3900L VYO
m©3Iodn gooy3ebo 06 Lbgo Byommgdnwob LoblMg-
600 dmBnc3o.

30606LYG0 M0L3gd0b JoMmm30b gobymaznemgods dywadnzom
03MbhMMgdL 606306 (M0 330009OM0L 3MBEngdbL. bigo-
HhobH03n6 dMEImM9ddy oYM Ebmdnm, brgds dob3nL oF-
039000 o 30O 9d900L B3N Bo3OEdNL 3OrIM3-
bmB0M9do, Mobo 39339mdnmoE3 dnnmbg3d Bymon Bob-
LEYO0L 9839 H0obo POOOBEIdY, 3eMmMngbhgdals o 3G90 -
HmM900b 30300 9MOLYOYEMN 30eMEYINMY09d0L O™
o 39795396bgdgm dmabobyMmgdobmeb ghmo.

LOM3IGIBOM GOLIO

bLom3gMmoom Mab3L, Lb3d BOJHMMYdMb Mmoo, 06393L
dogo 360HmM39L700L 8MVI339HNMMBY, M3gMOHMMNL I3Mm-
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LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk of a failure by the bank to repay its
liabilities within a specified term. The liquidity risk is divided
into the following categories:

e Market liquidity risk -risk that the Bank may not provide
balancing of specified positions with market prices due
to weak market liquidity position or problems created
on the market;

e Funding liquidity risk - risk that the Bank may not provide
conversion of assets into money or may not be able to
attract funds from other sources.

The Financial Risk Management Division permanently monitors
the bank’s liquidity positions. The cash flows of the bank's
assets and liabilities are forecasted based on statistical
models. As a result, the bank achieves effective investment
of liquid funds along with on-time and reliable service of
liabilities against the customers and creditors.

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk, which together with other factors,
is caused by an inadequacy of internal processes, operators’
errors, system failures or external problems affecting the
operation of the bank. On the basis of a business continuity
policy, the Operational Risk Management Division permanently
monitors the unimpeded operations of the bank's business
processes. Evaluation of processes is carried out on the
basis of standards specified for risks and customer service
to make each process stable and reliable for the Bank as
well as for customers. On the basis of statistical data and
key risk indicators especially risk sensitive procedures are
determined for identification and optimization of their
risks level.

CURRENCY RISK

Currency risk is the risk of a depreciation of the bank's foreign
currency assets caused by a variation in the foreign currency
exchange rate. The Financial Risk Management Department
permanently monitors the currency position of the Bank,
considers the risk-hedging strategies, and carries out the
optimization of currency risk and determination of limits to
increase the Bank's profitability from currency transactions.

3900, bLoLhgdnb IBYMIMNEOL odMLIMY 06 oMy 3GrMbEM9dg-
00, ™300 3030mgbol bbb 30630l FPdomoody. d08bg-
Lob PByY39H™O0L 3meahn3o8y EOYMEMINM, bom3gGognm
©0b 39000 doMm30b gobymanemgde 3330300 d3MbHOMMAL
60630b 008690 3r™M39LxdNL A9 gebadge dPdomdsl. 3Grm3a-
190 ROLEYdS M0L 3L O 3eMNgbHMS dMBLObYMgONL Lhob-
M 1H9089 oyOEbMONm, MmO MomMmayma domaobo ngmb
309L0doemyGoE bhednmyMa o LdndgEm, HMmamEE 00630,
01939 30m096¢h0Lm30L. bHoHNLAHN3PE dmMboEgdgdbo o GNL-
39000 bo3396dm 06(N3OHMMJOBY OYMEMONm, BoM3MgdL
396b0 39069000 LoygyGOOEEPdMm 3O MEIEYMJONL nwybhngzn-
306900 o doma MH0b3gonl m3hndndogno.

5O3OWIBM HOL30

bogomYBH™M Gabzn oMab d9630b PEbmPG F0myhodn BmEdo-
690900 99hn3900L gona3ebycgdal Gobzn, HmIgemay godm-
6399cm00 YEbmYA0 3oemyHeb gopamoma 3pGLAL F3maey-
000. 530606LYGON G0L3gdaL doOM30b Fobymanemgdd dydo-
3000 93MbAHOMMYAL 406306 LozomyH™m 3mBonol, gobobo-
™36 M0b3gonl 393069000 LHGOHI3NOL, dbYBL bogoemyhm
©0b30b M3HndnBoEnol o a6l mdnhgdl, Momo godok-
ML bO3dMYPHM M3IMVENYONEOD d9630L dMa9d0L doA3969090™n.

LO3OMBIGOM GOLSD

LO3OMEIBH™M MNL30 3YeabbIMAL bodMMmEgbhm dgdmbogzemal
dm3hobo 0ghn3900L0 o L3MMEIbHM boMFab IJmbg 3oemeog-
0990900, Lb3ogOLb3d 30N0bMoNL 3odm, LadtmEgbhm
3960339000 33em0mad0m BoMIMmAmonem MabsL. ogdhnzgdabo
00 390709 9d900L 3000006Mdb 39390L gobabogmogl g3o-
6obbYM0 G0b3gd0L JoHM30L Zobymanemgde. LodedG M dmbo-
399900 (o 93MbM3n3nM 06N30HMMYOB dydn3n dgm3oem-
g6 9m000m bgdo LadOMEbHM 3obd3390x00L 3IMabmMBaY-
00, OM3ImaL 39839M00mo3 3oboLodma®ady v9hn3900L o
300M909™98900L doGomon LhGYIbhace.

LOBIBGM HOLIO

LOOOBGM GNL3N dM0L 6BMBg 030LdaL dgFrygmoal dgw9-
3000 006306 dngEd O FoMgLoddMOBLm 3mBaEngddg BoMeo-
ol 30gdolb Gobzn. LodedG™ Gabin dgndmads BoMdmnd-
300 0063006 nbgmo Logddnobmdnl dgazow, MmamMay oéab
0639b¢H0Eg00L ZobbmMENgmgde 30gdln®gdym 85dmbos-
™0ob 3oLNOb JomomgdLbo o gymon d08Mab nbbhHGY-

INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk results from changes in the interest rates
of different maturity interest-bearing assets and liabilities.
Maturity gaps of assets and liabilities are examined by the
Financial Risk Management Division. On the basis of
permanent monitoring over market data and economical
indices, a forecast of interest rates is made and the main
structure of assets and liabilities is defined.

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss regarding the bank's balance
sheet and off-balance sheet positions, due to a variation of
prices on the market. Market risk may arise from activities
such as: investment in securities with fixed income and
money market instruments; share participation in the capital
of companies; investment in the shares of public companies;
money investment in derivative securities; and changes in
the prices of assets disclosed in off-balance accounts. The
evaluation of the investment portfolios of long and short-term
public securities of the bank is made by the Financial Risk
Management Division, which monitors diversification level
and Value at Risk of the portfolios, and keeps the risk positions
within the limits.

Before submission of private equity investment projects
of the Bank to the Investment Committee, the financial
Risk Management Division carries out their analysis and
evaluation.

LEGAL RISK

Legal risk is the risk caused by the legal weaknesses, which
together with other factors are caused by legal actions,
absence of supporting provisions in laws and statutory acts
or inadequacy of legally mandatory requirements such as
non-compliance of contracts with legal requirements, as
well as failure to analyze documents specified under the
law or internal statutory acts of the bank before the
conclusion of a contract. Legal risks are managed by the
Legal Department, which permanently monitors the
orderliness of the Bank's documents and submits analysis
and conclusion regarding the profile of legal risks, of the
bank, to the Risk Management Committee.
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SHOTA RUSTAVELI

STATE ACADEMIC

THEATHRE

dmmo GPLmo3zgmal bobgmmoal v39093096M0 mgoh™ab dgbmdd 1898-1901 Bemgddo Lo HobdH™ LoBmao-
©Mg00bm30b 539600. 1921 Bgemb ol dmmo MPLlmozgmab bobgemo dngbags. Mgoh®Mob 3038060 90ym0d
Lobgmgobmgddgemo Mg30bmEgd0b - 3mbHg JoMEEbndz0emb, LobGOm dbdghgmab, dnbgomm mydsbndzngal,
9376 Abgadabo o G™oghh bhncyob d9dmgdgwyddE.

The building, which now houses the Shota Rustaveli State Aacademic Theatre, was built for the Artistic Society in
1898-1901 to be given its present name in 1921. Some of the most distinguished Georgian directors, such as
Messrs: Kote Marjanishvili, Sandro Akhmeteli, Mikheil Tumanishvili, Temur Chkheidze and Robert Sturua put on
plays there at various times.

2002-2005 6emgddn dgbmdsl Mgbhozmopns Royho®o LogemsdmGabm LogdzgmamddgEm Bmbrds “JoMmy”.
In 2002-2005, the building was renovated by International Charity Fund “Cartu”.
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396(h90dn, 3m33obnomo 3odnhomadn BoemmdMnzn dmbobo-
mgmoY, boFo®m bobogmm 3odohomal 0g3ngddn nb639LH0Mg-
00, 60M3M7dY RBOLNOL Joomgddn MobbgdnL odObgd
00 96OLOOOMOBLM 86306037089 BoMBMEZgbnma oghHn39d0b
030bgo0b 33emaemade. d0630L 3Mdgemn o dm3emg3on0ba
LogoMm gobNbn Jomomgdalb Lonb3zgbhognm MmO HRYML
3060b0ogmo3L o vx30L9OL BNbobLYMN G0L3IgdAL oM mzab
396gmaz3nmgd, MMAgeoE 03MbHOMEgdL 3mMAHxgmmgdal
Lonb3gbHNEm LHMOHIZNol G0L3JAL, En33MbNggn3oENAb
©mbgL o Mobzob 9393 9GLYOYTO PMOYM9dnl mndon-
$h900L BoMamgddn dmdi3g3oL. 30bobLYM Mabigdal doM-
0300 gobygmazngmgdo 406306 39Gdm 3o30hoemal bonb3zgbho-
30m 3MMaghadal bonbzgbhogom 3mdnhghobmzal BoMras-
60309 3o00boeMnBgdL o d90030b9dL dom.

LO8OGHO)WIBGHN30 GOL3D

LOFOMMEgdGMN30 ML 30 odMbB3gYaS bddoGmgdMnzn bin-
LyLEHIOEL 99390, Mg, bb3d BOJHMEOJIMb ghMmo,
ABgdo LodoMmmgdMngn dmJdggdgdnl, 3Jobmbgdbs o
Be®3o¢hnyem 09hHg0d0 odbdoty gdnm9d900b yJmbemnmdabo
06 LOFOOMMYOMN300 L3O EJOYM dMMbM367daL LobYL-
Hhob 3odm. sLgmo gogdhm@a dgbodmmmo agmU, dogomomog,
b9em393670mg0900b g7nLododmds bLddoMmemgdtng dmmbma-
690006, byemdg3MYem9dgdalb goxmMIgd0dy 306mMmbIgd-
MO0 ¢39600m0 06 39630L Bnd bryMdoghnyema oghgdom
306bOBM3MNMN M 39TgbHd0L ZonoboemNdgdemmdy. LodoM-
0906030 H0b3NLAOD EOE39L 3PMNMIOL NP0 ]-
306 (hodgbhn, MMIgemoE 3Pdn300 d3MbHOMOL 00630L
©M319396¢hoE00b dmbgbdnggdymmdsl o Mabznb doMmzab
3m30(h9HL BoMYabL ©bdMNBLY O EOL33690L d0b30L bo-
3o6OHmmydM030 M0b3nb 3 Ml dgbobgd.

LOMIOIBNIW0 HOL3D

LHGOHI3NYMO ML gob3nMMAgOYMNY d0630L LHG VG -
300L bybho ©Eoan33d30Lo o oggadomma bhMohaganob
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STRATEGIC RISK

Strategic risk is the risk caused by inadequate planning of the
bank's strategy and absence of control over execution of the
planned strategy, as well as inappropriate business-solutions
of the Bank and non-responsiveness to external changes.
Strategic risk is controlled by the Planning and Control
Department, which monitors the execution of plans by each
structural unit and investigates the reasons for failure to
execute a plan. The Planning and Control Department
submits analysis and conclusion regarding the profile
of strategic risks of the bank to the Risk Management
Committee.

REPUTATION RISK

Reputation risk is the risk, which together with other factors
is caused by making of negative public declarations regarding
the bank's operations or negative representation of the
bank. Any activity in which the bank becomes known to any
outside the bank via public statements, relations with clients
and advertising campaigns is subjected to reputation risk
control. Reputation risk managed by Quality Control Department,
which carries out control over the norms and standards of
public relations and submits analysis and conclusion regarding
the profile of reputation risk of the bank to the Risk Management
Committee.

COMPLIANCE RISK

Compliance risk is the risk of financial losses, which may
be caused by the non-fulfillment of norms, regulations and
standards established under legislation or by the non-fulfillment
of the bank's internal policies. Compliance risk is monitored
by the Economical Analysis Department, which submits
analysis and conclusion regarding the profile of compliance
risk of the bank to the Risk Management Committee. m

30b6bm®MEngmgdol P3MbHOMmMMdnm, 93Mgm3g, 00630b
LybHO d0869L-3oOBY39HNMY0gd0m b oMy goghmeMgdo-
Lodn nbgOBHPmmdnm. LG oHIzNmo MGabzol Mmo30S0
030900l bo3nmbgddg IPdomob ozg3d3nby o 3Mb-
HOmmob gobymaznmads, HmIgmon m30mb v93690L
0000390 bHOYJHIO I gH gyl 3g3dgdab Igbey-
900l o 033emg3L doma dgyLdymgdmmdnl dnBgBgobl.
0039333000 O 3MbHOMOL gobygmayngmgdo Mabznb
domm30b 3m30¢hghb BoMYPagbL 0boemnBLY o Eol33690L
00630L bLhGOHhganymao Gabzob 3G Mmaggnmab dgbobgo.

®33305600b GOL3O

©939hos00b Gabsb, bbzo BoghMmGOgdmeb ghmo, 016393L
006300 bLOgdNObMOBLMOB 303306 xdPMM0 YoM ymaznmo
LoFoMO™ gobEbogdgdn o 606306 YoMOrymgnmo boMdm-
Rgbo. M93nphogoolb MGobzolb 3MbhGOMmmL 9939309006 9dd
00630b 6900b30gM0 J3g9d0, H™PgemoE bdoyncgdd 00b-
30b 3oMgm, LoFoMO™m 3obabogdgdal, 30m0gbhadLo o bo-
B8maom9dobmob yehmogOHommonl o LoMgzmodm 3od-
30600l 3dom. Mg3yhognob Mob3obasb oE3ol 3uGnMgdl
bo®abbob doMmm30b gobygmanmagds, H™IgmnE 03MmbHeMm-
mg0b LOBMZOEMYdOLMOL YO MNgMMMONL bm®IgOL o
LHObEIMHIOL o MLl oM m30l 3m3nhahlb Bocyco-
396L oboemnBLO o ob33b690L 006306 M93yhoanal Mob-
30b 3G mx0mob dgbobgd.

33b00530LMBNL HOL3N

dgbododnobmonl Gob3n BNbobLlGo Eobd3oMag00L Gob-
300, Om3gmog dgbodemmo 306mb3gdemmonl, Babgdab,
LHobEOOHYd0L o 606306 dnd 3Mmohnznm EOEa9bn-
o beo®3o(hn3900L dgyuLEYmgdemmosd godmnbznmb. dg-
LodOdobMdNL Gob3ol 3MBHGMML 3PMH0cMgdolb 93mMbman-
3960 060em0d0L 30O HOd9b¢h0, GmIgmoag Hobiob dod-
300 3m3ohgdhL BoMPEagbb vbomedLo o ol33690L
00630L dgbododnbmdL MHabinb 3™l dgbobgd. m

Lo3M9E0HM 3MOAHRBIMOL EPIGZMOM030 bhGIhyMs 2011
Structure of the Credit Portfolio 2011

32% . 339690 mds / Construction

38(y 30§65 o dMAbabyMgdd
0 Trade and Services

.I 3(y Lodmm 369639 ™dd o JghHomyMand
0 Mining and Metallurgy

8% [l 20803060 306980 /Individuals

3% bogmab 39966gmds / Agriculture

6% . bbgo / Other
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KOTE MARJANISHVILI

STATE ACADEMIC

THEATHRE

3mb9 306OF60330em0b Lobgmmmdab Lobymadbogm 0390930760 EMOIoHYM MgohMn 1928 Bymb 3mb9
300 §060330em3d g. Jymonlbdo EoddMLY. Mmgoh®n 1930 6gmb mdnmabdo goEam30wd, OMaMME dgmMy
Joemyemo bobgemadbogm ML MJOHEN O ON3Id3d ddgdn BYdomodz0mgonl bobommbm bobemal dgbmobe,
Mm™3gmoE 93900 0gm 1907 bgemb. 1933 6gemb, oM Fobnd3znemoal oM woE3oemgdab d93¢093, MgoH®L dalo
Lobgomn dngbogo, 1966 Bgemb 30 oL 0300093096 0b Lhohbog POmdab.

In 1928, the Kote Marjanishvili State Drama Theatre was founded by Kote Marjanishvili, a prominent Georgian theatre
director who, in 1930, moved from the city of Kutaisi into the Zubalashvili Brothers’ Popular House (built in 1907)
in the capital Thilisi. In 1933, three years after Kote Marjanishvili’s death, it was named after him, and in 1966, it
became an Academic Theatre.

2005-2008 6emgddn dgbmdsl Mgbhozmopns Royho®o LogemsdmGabm LogdzgmamddgEm Bmbrds “JoMmy”.
In 2005-2008, the building was renovated by International Charity Fund “Cartu”.
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BO666LIG0 0630603300
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

29Jhn39060 / Assets

BP0 O Yoo bobbMgdn
Logommzgmmb g ™36ym 3563380
Cash and Balances with the

National Bank of Georgia

00639089 30393990 Lgbbgdo o ©306L1d0,
dgbodemm goygzoly®gdal obo3omzgdol
9896300 godmamgdom

Due from Banks less possible

impairment losses

3m096h9089 3oEgdyemo bgbbaydn, dgbodmm
309830 900b Eobd3oMaxd0L M9BgM30L
30dm3mgdnm

Loans to customers less possible

impairment losses

0639b¢H0Engo0

Investments

Lonb39LH0ENM gobnobn Jomomeagdn

Investment securities

doomogn Lodyomgdgdn O 9MBFo¢HgMnomyMn
09H03900, oaM ™300m0 33900l godm3mgdom
Fixed assets and non-tangible assets,

less accumulated depreciation

Lbgo 0ghn39d0, dgbodemm gogxobyMgdal
0603060390606 MH9B89G30L godmamagdom
Other assets less possible

impairment losses

by / Total
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201l

12/31/2008

12/31/2009

12/31/2010

12/31/2011
GEL'000

7%

7%

66%

0%

2%

3%

15%

100%

30 9dPm9d9d0 / Liabilities

00639000006 d0ggdymo babbgdo o ©306bLgd0

Due to Banks

3m096hmo 9630603700

Customer accounts

bbgo gogmgdymgdgon
Other liabilities

LpdmGEoboMgdymoa 30ma
Subordinated debt

by / Total

bodggnm 3d3nhoea / Equity

LoBgbgdm 3o3n¢hoema / Share Capital

698963900 o doynbobamgdgmn dmagoe

Reserves and retained earnings

by, booggom 3odnghomao
Total Equity

d9dmbogmygdoa / Income

36 mE3bhmo d9dmbogmada

Interest income

dmadboby®gdom domgdymo bdzmadobomgdo
o d9dmbogmadn

Fee and Commission income

630bco dmagde Logomybhm M3IgMOENJ00EL

Net gain on foreign exchange operations

bbgo 893mbogemadn / Other income

by / Total

12/31/2008

boM§900 / Expenses
36O mE396hymo boGggdoa / Interest Expense

3900bgnemo bd3MnLnmgdn s dmabobyMgdab boMFgdn

Fee and Commission Expense

Lom3gMmopnm botgndn / Operating expenses

L3O ™MEbhm LoGmagdmal dmahob vghn39d8g
dgLodmm 3ozl no0l Obd3060M3900L
69896300 gmGInM9dd

Provision for impairment losses on

interest bearing assets

bbgo bo®ggodn / Other expenses

byem / Total

630bc> dmagdo / Net profit

| 100% |
o
| =% |
.
I
| 1% |
| 100% |

12/31/2009 12/31/2010 12/31/2011

GEL'000

5% 11%
50% 33%
B B

44% 63% 55%

100% 100%

40% 52%
60% 48%

100% 100% 100%

80% 84%

-
B

100% 100%

B

22% \ 13%

-9% 75%

BT
100% ‘ 100%
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VANO SARAJISHVILI
TBILISI STATE

CONSERVATOIRE

306m LoMoOFnd3z0mab LdbgmmMdnl Mmdnabol Lobgemadboxm 3MmbLyM3dHMGNS LojoMmzgmmadn 306390
3ol Lodybozm LoLbo3mMgdgmns. Bemgdab dobdoemBdg ngn nym 03096 30330L00d0 93 M3Ya gonwab
96000360 m0 Ldgbozm LoLbd3mMgdgma. ygmaznma dybnzomyMn LobBo3mMgdmal d96mdd ©39bgs 1901-1904
Bom90d0. 3mbBLYGOZHMMN0L EPOddINL MmaMamas 1917 Bemab 1 donbn. 1924 Byemb dob dngbago Lobgemdbo -
3m 306bgO30HMM00L LHOHYLN. 1947 Bemnob 030 JoOM39ema dMIMgMcemab - 30bm LoMogndznemal bLobgeml
o(ho69db.

The Vano Sarajishvili Thilisi State Conservatoire was the first higher education school of music in Georgia. For years
it was the only European style music school in the South Caucasus. The building of the former music school was
constructed from 1901-1904. The Conservatoire opened on 1 May 1917. In 1924, it became the State Conservatoire,
while in 1947, it was given the name of Vano Sarajishvili, after the distinguished Georgian Opera singer.

2005-2008 6em9gddn dgbmdsl Mgbhozmopnd Royho®o LogemsdmGabm LogdzgmamddgEm Bmbds “JoMmy”.
In 2005-2008, the building was renovated by International Charity Fund “Cartu”.
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LO306MB3IOT(M B3TNWIBIBN

2011 6gemb LogdoGm39mmUL 306Mmb3EdemMmdsdn (39Gdm,
Logoobobowm 3mEgdbn o 306Mba “boombMymgdm Bot-
dmadomo dgbobgd”) dmbod (33¢m0emgd9d0l dg¢hobs, Modoy
20OYMR0m0 3o3mabo ngmboo bL “00630 JoO®mY”-b BNbOL-
LG FEaMmIoMgMOB9. J39dmm obbagmymns gl Lo30bMb-
30 33erngmgdgoa:

1) 28/10/2011 b. - bogoGrmzgemmb 306mb3n “boogmlMymgdm

BoM3mMgd0mo dgbobgd” 8930000 (33¢m0eMgd, HMIML Mo -
6ob3ogo3, 08 393mb393080, HMELLE Ldgoobobom go-
6036m00L/03mmg30L BoMIMAMONL Logydzmagdn dng-
39036900 3m39ME0Ym0 60630L 3nGO36MmO0L/03Mmg30L
©930bGHGOENdEY 396 0mEL, 306390 M0adn, o3d0Ym-
30emgdd bogoolobom gdnMo3bmdnm/ndmmgznm yd-
66390myma30emo dmmbm3zbo, bmenm 3530093 33gG30Y-
0 60639000 dmmbm3bo. P6s ©nbndbmb, H™A3 33emo-
mgd0dg oMLYdYMmN Mgodinol (Mm3gmoy mo30l
MHmBg 999803000 Lodb3M dbmEnENNL o dgdmbogs-
m300L Lodboby®ab d9mobbdgdnl Igbododnbog) dnbyco-
300, 30639 M03d0, 3304MBNMEIdMES Logowobobo-
M 306Mo36mdnb/ndmmg3nb M930LAHGOENY 00639000
dodomm oMLbYdYMmN 30mMEgdYm9dgdn, bmenm dgd-
©3M3 - bogoobobom gnMo36mdnm/ndmmy3z0m PBYL-
39Myma30emo 3mmbm3bo, 967 00636 bodyomagds 3gmb-
o 3M90bhol 3oEgdvdwpg d793mbB3dgd0bd, 3tmngbhob
Jmbg0o oh30HMYmo ngm my 96O bogoobobom go-
6036M000/03MmmMg300 (o, dgbododobog, doogbyzndo
36900¢H0b 3o3930/0603033930b bdznmba. HMEaLLE 0MLY-
Oy M90g30ob ogdothe B3gdmombndbyemn Bnboowyg-
00, 3Gogdhnzumo, dgndmagdgmo gdobo ndab gomao-
mobBnbgdo, my Go d93mbzgzodn dngboggdo bogoobo-
bom LOdLObYGOOL ImMbM3bol d0630L dMmmbm3bobmob
3900069000 P306M9hHabmd. dboManYGmN 33eMNMgdd
396bm®ME09mM bogowobobopm 3Mmwydunl 239-9 dybem-
do. 93039 306mbab 50-g dgbemal 39-10 3ybghdn gobbme-
3099090 33¢maemgdnl dgbododabo, 0d dgdmb3ag-
3000, oy LoomLbGOYMgdm BoMdmgds 30dENboMIMAL
LobyemABoML LobotMagdemme o 30639t dyJ3nmb3g
06 303mM3mnbrod 3odoMm§309mo 3060 o6 my vyJi0mb-
do godoMm§39dymads 3063 Jmbgdob boggoby®on o6 o-
onboo 03 30bmbom oEagbnem 30009030, dmbGMY-
™30l 9Mm3bnemo doycm yo3emgdedmbiogmns, dgdiEom-
6oL EObMYMYdnOb 15 Eal 30080 godmLEgl 3ob -
30639mgoe  LobgmadBoxgml Lozym®Mgdodn Jmbgdol
BohyMom 3dooEgdnl dgbobgd. bogoMOrm3zgmmmb 306mbab
“BoomLGOYMYdm BoMdmgdomes dgbobgd” 33emnemgdody
26LYOYM0 Ggogdnal dgbodedabog, 303900 vydiEom-
60l Aodemnb 393mbgg308n nbndbgdmo gobdgmemgdnma
09930mb0. dbogmo Ggoganol dgbododabog 30, Jmbgdol
©90m0do3n0lb OHmMAn LEGOBOE FobbmMEngmMgdal
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LEGISLATIVE CHANGES

The changes made to the Georgian Legislation (to be exact,
the Tax Code and the Law “On Enforcement Proceedings”)
in 2011 had a negative effect on the financial situation of
Cartu Bank JSC. The legislative changes were as follows:

1)

2)

28/10/2011 - a change made in the Law “On Enforcement
Proceedings” states that if the grounds for the creation
of a tax-related pledge/mortgage belong to the time
prior to the registration of a commercial bank pledge/
mortgage, a claim secured by a tax-related pledge/
mortgage must be deemed preemptive to that of the
commercial bank.

While, according to the previous edition of the Law-
approved by the Association of the Bank and Revenue
Service - liabilities to the banks created prior to the
registration of the tax-related pledge/mortgage were
prioritized against the claim secured by the tax-
related pledge/mortgage, i.e. in its decision-making
regarding the issuance of a loan, a bank was previously
been given the opportunity to inspect whether a client’s
assets had been encumbered with a tax-related pledge/
mortgage. However, the 2011 change makes it unclear
in which case a Revenue Service claim supersedes
that of a bank.

A similar change was made in article 239 of the Tax
Code. According to a change made in article 50(10)
of the Law “On Enforcement Proceedings”, if the
enforcement proceedings are in favor of the State and
no winning bidder emerges as a result of the first auction,
or if the winner fails to pay the price of the assets
within the term set by the Law, the National Bureau
of Enforcement has the right to issue an order regarding
the nationalization of the assets within 15 days upon
completion of the auction.

Under the previous edition of the Law “On Enforcement
Proceedings”, if the first auction failed, second was to
be arranged. The new legislative change makes it possible
to nationalize assets immediately upon failure of the
first auction.

11/11/2011 - according to a change made in article
77-1(7) of the Law of Georgia “On Enforcement
Proceedings”, if a coercive auction is designed for the
fulfillment of the decision under article 2(“l”) (the sale
of the borrower’s assets pledged/mortgaged for the
reason of taxes) upon the transfer in kind thereof, all
the rights of property registered after the creation of
the liability, underlying the tax-pledge/mortgage of
the assets, are annulled.

According to the previous edition of the Law, upon the

2)

3)

®30mbodGabom, 306330 oyJnmbal Aodemal 393-
®b39303039 dgbodegdgmns, Jmbgdo bohnmnm goog-
390 bdbyemM3bogzMU.

11/11/2011 B. - “booebMYmgdm BoMImgdoms dgbobyd”
bogdoMmmzgmmb 306m63n 3930000 33em0eMdY (Fbemn 77-
1, 396940 7). 9¢b0dbyemo 33¢m0oemgdal dgbododnbog, my
0dymad0mo 93J30mbo bm®Engmgde 03 306mbal d9-2
dybemab “3” §3931969(H0m om30emnLbBNbadYM™n gowoby3g-
Hoeadob (Bmzomab bogowobobowm 3nGo3bmdnm/ndm-
09300 Ed(H300M0 Jmbydolb MHgomadono) ombtymy-
00b 3083b0m, Lo3YME9dedn Jmbgdal BohyMom Fool-
3mob dgg3oe Jdwgde yzgme Lobngmm ygmgds,
AHmImgdol Gga30bhGoMgoymnd 03 30mMEgdYMgdal
BoM3mMIMd0L 3930093, O™Imal bLoxyyd3gemBgE Jmbgdody
393039 LdgooLvboEM gntMo3bmdnb/ndmmg3nb yo3-
m7gdo. 306mbal d3gemn Ggodnab dnbg30m, Jmbgdalb
390003930L 3930093 193IdME bdgoobobom gnMos -
Bbmoo/03mm930b Gganbhopnal 39393 oMg30LHGN-
69090 g3gmo YBYIod, 967 3MIE0HMMBS (396330)
BLhoe MY, G®™A3 dobn gnGmo36MdS/03M™Mg30 96 goy-
490090mo, My 030 JLBOYdS Logoabobom gnMozbm-
00/03mm930L H930LAHGOEN0L MOGNEL. 30bmbab dbogmo
690009300L dgLodedabog, 3GgEoHMmGOabm30L 3oyM339-
39000 03mm930L 3onddgdal MM, MoEasb 08 3omg-
09900 BoGIMAMONL MmoMomn, HMAmaL LoegydlgmBdas
Jmb900L o900 Logoobobom gnMoszbmds/nd3mma3d,
36mdnmo gobegde dbmmme dob 39393, Mg LogocOrm
©998hM30 oMx30LAHGMEYdS Logosbobowm gn®os-
BmM00/03Mmm930 O EONB08BYdS boFoGM dyJ30Mba, dAdl-
6 gdmob on93nmbol obnd3zbnl g3obibogdsdn 30 oM
006036900, HMI Jmbgds, G™AgemoE LoMgomndonme
39000 99930mb39, oH30MMYS 606306 LobdMFgdemML.
28/12/2012 B. - “booebMmmgdm Botdmgdoms dgbobgd” be -
Jomm39cmmb 3060630 3930000 33¢M0eMgd0 (Fgbemn 69, 3bg-
Hh0 1) GmIgmab d0bg30003, 9eLMYgdab geHM3bYm d0y-
ML 0dyemgdnmo vygd30mbab Rohogdnb no3emgds yoomalb
00009000006 gm0 M30L 3obdogzemmdsadn v93L, boagmm 0d
d98mb3930d0, My boMgomBdognm Jmbgdo dga3oLndyemos
bodbEYEdM BoMTMgonl Eobygdodg gma Bemal 3ob-
3030mm0O0dn, vebityemgdal gem3byemo doytm ndyemgdom
09930m06L Rooho®gdl yoomal ogdnedb Mo 33060b
3063030mMo0d8n. 306Mb0L (33¢m0eMadadg dMLYdYMM Mg-
09300b dgLododnbog, ndnEMadnmn vYJE30Mb Hotgdms
20LMYemgo0b obYgd0b MEMN M30L 3obdogemmdsdn, oby,
3M094h03nemog, dembMmYmgdal 3000 d0yFahob Lobotggo-
o 96OLdYe BoombMmYmgdm bdgddggddg MmN M30LL MM
330603009 8993067000, 03gbVEOE LoMgagmndoEnm Jmbgdo
dgbodemadgemns dg030begl d3gemn maMnmnom, Mo, o3 dyb-
om0l obagmo Mgegi3nab Igbvdodnbog, ndnemgdnmn syJinm-
B0l Bogho®9d0l Lodyoemgdel ndemgzo. m

transfer of the assets, all the rights registered upon
the registration of a tax-related pledge/mortgage
were cancelled, which means that a creditor (bank)
was sure that its pledge/mortgage would not be lifted
if it preceded the registration date of the tax-related
pledge/mortgage. Contrary to this, the new edition
makes it unclear for the creditor when the mortgage
may be lifted, since the date of the liability underlying
the tax-related pledge/mortgage is made known only
upon registration in the Public Registry of the tax-related
pledge/mortgage and the arrangement of a public
auction. Moreover, the executor is not obliged to specify
on the auction application that the assets for sale
were encumbered in favor of the bank.

28/12/2011 - a change made in the Law “On Enforcement
Proceedings” (article 69(1)) states that the National
Bureau of Enforcement may arrange a coercive auction
within one month of the seizure of assets, while if the
assets for sale were evaluated within a year prior to
the enforcement proceedings, the National Bureau of
Enforcement can stage the coercive auction within
two weeks of the seizure thereof.

Under the previous edition of the Law, the coercive auction
was staged within two months of the commencement of
the enforcement, which means that the enforcement term
in cases related to the National Budget were reduced from
two months to two weeks. Under the new edition of the
Law, a coercive auction can be staged since the assets for
sale may be evaluated by the retroactive date. m
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BIW0L 350130 IBOLY O
OIGMGOB33NL ©IBN66LIdOL
Q333300 bdIFNA6MBO

3oLy, 2011 Bemol 3obdogzcmmdvdn 306330 BPmal Fomg-
0690060 O HyOME0830L EONbBLAYdNL 36193963000 O
0 339m0b, 96y 530606LYM0 FMbaHMEMNbaNL gobbmMEngma-
00b dmo3060 LHGYIOIGI™ 9OH®MIeo AML/CTF (Anti-Money
Laundering/Combating Terrorism Financing) (09306 (0dbhn ngm.
AML/CTF (09306 (h0396(h0, 39Gdme, dalin mGa bhGyJHaGOIm
939000604mx30 (30606L7G0 IMbahMENBZbS o 06306033 -
00l gobyma3nemgdo; dmbogdmo dm3zema30bo o dbogmnBal
3964ma30emad0) 339 IMO30em0 Bemab B0b obyGgnemo o
0360 Md06909m0 MmOEMbnsbn B3nbobbyMo dmbodhmMabzal
306Om30b 3OMELL ©3MbHGHMMgds.

030606LYGM0 dMbohmEM0banl 3G MEgLoL 308063ndotrmymoc
0 9539JH0obo BoMdoMm3znlb bgemdgbymonl d0dbnm, AML/
CTF 09306 (h039b¢3o, Lozymatn nboznohn30mo s d5630L
b9m3ddm3069emmdnl dboMoggMnm, dg33omo Lonbam™do-
30M-060em0hn3YM0 33¢m930L bdgOM3MMLM 3MM3009MN.
396dme, 2009 6gemb dmbdotgdyemn WORLD-CHECK-0b 3ma-
309h9Mm0 LogbmdoM™M Lobhgdab boEamo 406330 dgndabs
ACCUITY-0b ogmhgGbohnygemon, b3ggnomyMo Lonbgm®mIoEom-
060003960 3OMEMH3mM0 PYBGYB3gMYMRY. g P3060L3bg-
o0 39039306 3900069000 BOONMIdLAHd00E LonbRMMo-
30 008900, 0bLobndbo30nd 0l goMdmadoE, MM vdo39 39-
©0medo 36mdnemn gobgo 03 3m330b600b 0MVBO3MYd 3M33g-
9606 3m335600Lm06 - BANKERS ALMANAC-0006 d96Bydal
00gdh0, Mo3o3 9OMMmMOE godotmps dsLgmn 3MbgmmagHo-
hob 3096 3gdmmo308907em0 3O MaMadymn PBMYB3gmym-
030b 0ghnomyM MO O 983gJH0obmds.

LOYOOIMENLM LENBbRMOTdEFNM-LOEBMISOIM dbomnhn3nMn
36O M3Modnmo P8MYb3gmyma3nl d9d96oLmob g mog d9630L
063mM3o30mn H9gdbmmmangd0l g3oMHdgbhoE gooad-
Gdgmo 9093390900 3OMaMadymn PBMYB3gmMymMa3gdal
39936089 dndomdo, G®Amab obdoMmgdnmoE JMmMdMmam-
0030 goemnodgdd i3nbobbyMn dmbohmG0bzal gobbmMpng-
3900 43900000 O gooymobozn Bemyg.

2011 Bemob gobdozemmododn gogtmdgmeos 03060bLyG0 dmbo-
HmE0630b mbdbemgdn nlgmo oyEnemgdgemn 3O MEIEYMYON,
Omammogos bdggnomydon 6306 0dzg0900bd O EOTOHI-
0000 3™ 330m930b0m30L bognMm BgMnemgdalb dm3Bogde o
bLodoM™M39emMMb BbsbLGn dMbahmENbanl Lodboby®ab-
030L, OM3MOE 396hMOMYM0 doM9xa P gdgmmo MEMZobMm -
bom30b Botragbal 3GrME39LO.

006330 g3yl MgEbaolo o HyOMM0B30L EOx3NBoBLYdNL
0333900 Mmbobidngdgd0L PBMB33MMLoyma3og Loobga®ndm
3960030 0063006 3MmM603IOMAM dM3MML3MbgbHM
LogOMOIMMOLM O d3NMMIMN3dd Ld3nboblm nbLHhNMHY -
h9030 330m03 3ooa3MdgemaL gHOMYGMN o 30BbMIGMN30 (hab-
H06909000L HEOEN. LdKNBIBLM NBLAHNHYHIOL dbdeMZnY-
60 HabhoMgdgd0, mozab dbMng, A396do 0063303 Aoyphodo,
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PREVENTION OF
MONEY LAUNDERING AND
TERRORISM FINANCING

In 2011, the Cartu Bank’s AML/CTF Department (Anti-Money
Laundering/Combating Terrorism Financing Department) was
in charge of the prevention of money laundering and terrorism
financing. Two of its structural sub-units - the Financial
Monitoring and Reporting Division and the Data Search and
Analysis Division -controlled a long-standing two-layer financial
monitoring management process.

For purposeful and efficient financial monitoring, the AML/CTF
Department initiated a Management-approved replacement
of the international information-analysis provider. Namely,
instead of the WORLD-CHECK search software used in 2009,
the bank acquired ACCUITY; alternative information-analysis
software containing relatively large-scale databases. At the
same time, the bank became aware of the ACCUITY merger
with BANKERS ALMANAC - another high-profile company,
which made their software even more important and efficient.
Alongside the acquisition of the international information
search and analysis software, the Bank’s IT Department
continued development of software relevant to efficient
financial monitoring.

In 2011, the necessary procedures accompanying the financial
monitoring-such as the preparation of special reports and
letters relevant to an extra inquest for submission to the
Financial Monitoring service of Georgia, the key regulatory
body, continued.

For the purpose of the prevention of money laundering and
terrorism financing, the correspondent international and local
financial institutions, collaborating with the bank, continued
detailed and targeted testing. For its part, the bank similarly
tested the financial institutions in order to determine their
compliance with the purposes of the financial monitoring. In
the aforementioned testing, due heed was paid to the KYCB
(Know Your Correspondent Bank) internal policy of the
bank, designed for the prevention of fictitious business
relationships “shell banks”, which are beyond the control of
a licensor country.

At the same time, in line with new statutory requirements,
steps were taken in order to ensure the obtainment and
recording of detailed identification information regarding the
beneficiary owners (natural persons) of legal entities
(companies) and, also, politically exposed persons.

The training of bank employees directly and indirectly involved
in the financial monitoring continued. In comparison with
previous years, the training was implemented electronically,
i.e. via the internal email of the bank. Note that in the reporting
period, not only the staff of the departments involved in the
financial monitoring but all interested employees rendering
indirect services to the clients were engaged in the resumed

om0 (00339003000 30M0 9009339HIO™OL EMbg 53nbabbyMn
dmbo¢hm®nbgnl 308690m0b. Avdmm3emaemn y3gme mmbab-
dngdo 30860¢0 nbobozgo 30630b dnd 3memahnznl KYCB (Know
Your Correspondent Bank - 036mdgg 396L 3m6Mgbdmbegbc
40630) 3MmMbMm365md om35emnbbBnbgdsl, HmIgmal ydmozcy-
Lo 3080603 BOJH0PE 096390006 (“dgem 00b30" - d0b630, OHIM-
dgemog 96 9939309006900 em0Egbdoal godzgdn J394bal
890003b90039mm0d0L) 65d0LdngEa bogddnobo yeOMogE M-
00bgob Mmo3vE3Y nym.

03039 3960medn 606330 ©ONbgGZY O 3obbmMEngms
0boemn b ObMBIEIdMM dMmMbM3b900L, 396dme, NyMnENY-
™0 306900 (3m335609000) 396993030560 Igbo3ymEg 530d0-
3960 9, 01939, 3MmmahnznMoE oJhnrGn 3069d0L dgbobgd
03m3By© 030 LonEIbHhNN3OE0M N6ME o300l dM3m3gdabo
o 09304b0MgdaL Mmbabdngdgdn.

3303 393Mdgmd 530bobbycn dmbahmEnbzal 3GrME39L-
30 306000306 O O30 306 AdGmyma d0630L Lhrnd-
Hmo 9OmIPmgdal moboddmmagmms LBd3mMgdal
36 m39b0. 90b0dbymn 3G mEgLo, 60bo BeMydmob dgog-
00, 3036MdgmEd 9emgdhO ™Mby dgmmEnm, 96y d0630b
dnogmadhembymo gmbhol godmynbgdom. s¢mbobndbe-
300, O™ LoobagoMndm 3gMnmdn LBo3mMgdal gobobmyg-
dymadd 3GmEgLds dmnE3d, dmgmao 35630, HMamMOE Mmo-
3000 30bobLyMn dmbohmGabzgalb 3GOMEgLan RoGmymao
Lh®YJHIO0 9O Mgl Mboddermamagdn, sbY39, y3gemo
Lb3o ONbhgcMgLgdYma MOboddGIMA3gman, 3063 9GHO306-
0306 d3mboBomgmdl 3emngbhmo dmabobyMgdal 3G M-
390L30. 93 H9060630L EPOHML 03 P3060L369mm dngEom bo-
dPomdo 3ogm®M30396000m L gomgm©gdalbe o Ha-
AHmE0d30L ox30606L900b O3 339m0 MBabdngdgdal do-
©obodOb3M o LOgMMOdMEbm JMmMbm3bgdoalL FMEbL.
Ly Loobgd®Ndm 39M0mEdn mmba LoLBs3MM-Loh M-
6063m baboo Roghotrge.

606380 890L603cmo dz30emmdnemn 3m330b0gd0b dnge Byemaly
30m9mM900Ld O HgMME®NBInb EoxzNbobLadL vMd339mn
mmbalidngdgd0Lo O 909339HIO ™AL botabba. 9mbndbyemds
36mEgLbdo oa30bobs, H®A dz0emmonem 3m33obngddn LBM-
6000 90930896 B306d6LYGN 3MbahMMNbanl mmbabdngdgdal
0060390060 M39 LO306MbIEdMM O bdgMHMmedmEabm 3m3-
39h9bhG0 MEZobmgdal dmmbmzbgdl.

AML/CTF 09306 (h0396hdd, 008bgbnb 3063000069006 o Gab -
39000 093060 (h9396(h70006 9O MO, odLMYMY d08bgL3MM -
39b900L BMEZ0M9dd, HMIMAL dgIZoELE EOB3MNMydnm
3006960 AML/CTF 09306(hdgbhob LhGdhadym g mgy -
m™g080 gdobohoMmgdgmo mmbabdngdgdn o dgad Lodydom
36Mox303900.

Loobao®mndm 39MnmEAdn3g gobbmMENgmMEY (33¢mnem9dgd0
bodoem3gmmb 03 Lo 30bMbAEgdmm bngMEgdn, MMIgmay
0693900906 LOyPMOEEIIM O dMVIMMIIMMgdo©N
(9603Mmmb603dOMAmYg) J399bgdalb Bybbol oEaabal o
03(h303900b Bgbl. 396dme, sbgma bybbol od¢H3nEgo0l
193 5008mboggdd  oogpd LodoMmzgmmb g6 m3byem
60630 (b90). 8gLododnboc, bYd-3o LoyyMomadm Bmbab J39-

training. The training secured provision of comprehensive
information on intra-bank and international requirements
relevant to the prevention of money laundering and terrorism
financing. Four training sessions were staged in the reporting
period.

The bank investigated the adequacy of measures taken by
its subsidiaries for the purpose of prevention of money
laundering and terrorism financing. The investigation made
evident due understanding of the international legal
requirements regarding financial monitoring.

Jointly with the Risk Assessment and Business Development
Department, the AML/CTF Department completed formation
of the business processes, resulting in a detailed list of
measures applicable to its structural units and work schedules.
Additionally, during the reporting period, changes were made
to Georgian Legislation governing the elaboration and
approval of the list of the Attention and Non-cooperative
(Non-Collaborating) Countries. The National Bank of Georgia
(NBG) was vested with the right to approve the above
mentioned list and, at the end of the reporting period, it
added the People’s Democratic Republic of Korea- or North
Korea - as the 42nd country on the list.

Cartu Bank had regarded North Korea's anti-money laundering
and terrorism financing measures as insufficient (source:
Financial Action Task Force - (FATF) survey of the countries)
and therefore it placed the country on the list of suspicious
countries. This fact testifies to the AML/CTF Department’s regular
familiarization with the normative documents published by
international competent authorities to secure the efficient
prevention of money laundering and terrorism financing. m

46900 ByLboL, G™3gmoE dMM 39MnMmEodg 41 §39yobol
dM0(303000, d03dho 9MM0 J3940bo (3mEgab bdbommbm g-
dmaGohoymo  MgL3ndmozd  (AGMommgm  3mG9d) o
LoobgeemNdm 39M0MEab dmmmL dmbndbyem Addmbomzoemdn
43946900L MomMmEYbmdoa 42 dgo03anbo.

LonbhgMgbm o bndobmdmnzne nb goMgdmgds, G™A 939-
gobo, ®m3gmng bYd-3o AOIMBIMZOMU odH, 60630l B0y
306080093 ngm 393Abgn™0 BYab FomgmMmgdabo o HaMm-
$0830b o30606Lxd0b g 339006 MMbabdngdome bobyLhgdn
(Bgo®m:  30bobbyMo  g§dggdnl  gobdobmGEngmgdgmn
3399300 (FATF) 3096 RoghoMgoyemon J3994b9d0b dndmbagm3d) o
d9Lo060dnbog 606306 Jng® dgy3zbnem 0gbo Logdzm J39ybgdnl
ByLbodn. 9bndbyemn dotmgdmgde 300093 9O Mbym dObHY-
690L, ™3 AML/CTF 300 hodgbho bobhgdohyMow gEbmos
Lo MedmEabm 30339(hgbhnM0 MGZobmadnl 3o 3odm3g-
9o 3969306909 bmGIohoye ©m3ndgbhgdl oo 3-
003 3000eMMAL ngmb Yol gomgmMmgdnbe o haemGaddab
©0030606b900b v 339m0b §dg0m EMb8). m
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iVERl FIED
by VISA

VBV Jb0B®0bMIdNL bIG3OLO

2011 Bgemb bl “d0b30 JoMmy”-b 3mobhnzyMa doMdMydal
dmaboby®gdabe o 3MMEgLbanl g3oGHOdgbhadd mo3ab
dm3bdog0gmb dgbmo3080 3emolihnzn®a doMomab LGY-
0o dbomoa 3G mEydho - VBV gbogmbmadal ybozomy-
60 bye30b0, EMAmaL VbdMMaNOE JoOmYm bodebzm Lbng-
63990 06 dmndm3zgdo.

3mobhngn®o doGomal sbomn 3Mmeydhn 86MyPbzgm-
goab gbogmmbm 0bhgGbyhao3M™ISL dbmagmomlb dob-
dhod0m. 9dnbom3zab LozdoMabno, dm3b3ocmgdgmma ngmb bL
“50b630 JoMmy”-b bgdnLdngGn Mo63al 3mJdgEn 3080 doMo-
000 3ggemmdgemn o 3Jmbglb dmdnmy®o hamgsmbo bob-
938030 oM930LHMNM0Ym0 dJHnyMo bmdGom.

306000006 dmmm Bmgddn dogmBg 3m3ymodyma gobgo
06h9®bghdn 3emobihnzncn doMOMYd0m 30FOH MBS o Lbgo-
oLb3go bobgmdnb dmaLoby®gdal damgdy, VBV yboggGmbm -
9000 by®30L0b EObGZ30 ML ZobbozymGgdom dddhyo-
™6 0. Abmaemamb dob3¢Hodom bygmadabobzmdns dngmo-
™mbmd0m 0bhgGbghdomodad o dmaboby®gdal bonha, Moy
dbmggmomb 69d0Ld0960 BaBHomaEob HGHobBogiznnl gob-
bmME309emgdaL bodyomgdol ndemgad. vdabog, 3oboggdny,
6om96 3608369mm30600 306 (H Yoy Lodyomdn 3gmob-
H03960 306M0900L YLogOHmbm godmygbgdabo o LodoGo-
0m dmbogdmo op30b P8GY63gmymx.

B36b6o3Lb Mo mo30L0 3tm0gbhgdal dogmomn Embalb dmabo-
by©gdoLo o bddoGOMM d08b5L0b YhogHmbm BoM3ocm -
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VBV SECURITY SERVICE

In 2011, the Cartu Bank JSC Plastic Card Services and
Processing Department began to offer its customers an
up-to-date plastic card product to the Georgian banking
sector - the unique VBV Security Service.

The new virtual card product gives the possibility of performing
online transactions in conditions of maximum security. For
this, a customer should be the holder of a valid Cartu Bank
JSC Visa Card and have an activated mobile phone number
registered in the system.

Online shopping done and other services used via the plastic
cards, which have increased in popularity in recent years,
have made the VBV Security Service especially relevant.
Millions of internet shops and online services are now available,
making it possible to perform transactions from around the
world. So it is understandable that secure usage of
plastic cards and protection of card data is extremely
important.

In order to maintain a high-quality service for its clients and
a secure card business, in the summer of 2011, Cartu Bank
JSC decided to introduce the above-mentioned service. The
Visa International Payments System was closely engaged
in the implementation of the project by way of financial
and technical support. Visa recommended the project to
international company, Modirum, which provided the
relevant technical support.

3089, LU “d0630 JoGr™my”-3 9bndbyema by 3z0bab B30l
dgbobad 3oobyzghnmade §96 300093 2011 Bemab Bogzbyem-
dn donem. 3G madhob gobbmengmgdedn oghoyMow Im -
660eMgMd VISA bdg®medmMabm bogopsbom Labhgdo.
3G mgdho 0bg®agdmeo dobo i3nbobby®o o (Hgdbnznta
dboMogaM0m o dob mo39 gonboo M93m3Igbopnd
LogMMOIMEMALMm 3Mm33obnd “dmEnGyAL”, Gmdgmog Pd-
6b39emymal 98 LgM30Lab Hagbn3yc dmAbobyMgdob.

by GodYbndg m39d0 - 2011 Bemal 27 093930966 3G Mmgd-
0 9dmgdgeo. 9mbobndbogns, M3 3 bggdnm (3m33obad
“dm0tMydnl” dmbobomamdnm o nbodnzndn, gOmFyMo-
0 306OHmmab godmygbgdom) VBV ybogzGmbmgdal bgzabo
LoJoOM3xMMLY O 3MbEHLLdIFMMS bnzMEgdn 30639mo
0069630 o 30L0 BoOMMBdLIHod00b0 319B9b¢oEnd 2011
Bemab 17 mgdhmadgmb VISA-b Gggaombomy® ma3nbdn dmgbym.
VBV pboggembmadab bg®30bo Semabihn3nGa doGomab 306 hyo-
™60 3O MEYJH00 O 30dmnygbgdo bogogem o dmaLobyMg-
60b MmbeonbLng®Egdn 3emobihnzn®n doMOmab, HMmamME Logo-
obm bodyomagdol 3odmygbgdnbiol. dobn 39d39Md0m Mb-
™onbhHObBOJ300L MM 3mBIgde 39033960089 dgy3060ema
006000 dMboE3gdmd o dnbn IREMdgMOL NIBHYOMVS.

VBV ybogGombmgdal by®30bol dobomgdow oMgagabho-
69060 93603369mm3069b0Y, 306000006, doybgo3dc ndabo,
0060mab 3xemmdgma nggbgdl my oMo 3ol nbhaMbyhao,
d0bn 39839Md0m 60OV 30O HYOMYM Lodyoe™An OB
096900 6900L3096M0 dGOLObIFMJdYM™0 3odMYygbgdnLaob. m

Within just a few months, on 27 December 2011, the
project was launched. And it is worthy of note that this
was the first time that the VBV Security Service had been
introduced in Georgia and the entire post-Soviet area,
owing to the involvement of Modirum and the use of a
dynamic one-time password.

A live presentation of the project was given at Visa’s
regional office on 17 October 2011.

The VBV Security Service is a virtual product used in plastic
card payments in e-commerce and online services in which
card data and the cardholders are fully authenticated during
online transactions.

In order to eliminate any possibility of fraudulent card
transactions on the Internet, Cartu Bank offers free
enrolment in the VBV Security Service for all its Visa card
clients; to this purpose, clients need to register for the
service only once. m

e D ] .I BER0VMN0 96306030 | ANNUAL REPORT



BO0OId0L JLIW0
NETWORK OF BRANCHES

Lomogm ma3nbon / Head office

monemabn, 0162, $033030d0b 3odd., Ne390

Ne39a Chavchavadze Avenue, 0162, Thilisi

9. /Tel.  (+995 32) 292 55 92/91/90
(+995 595) 92 55 92

godbo/Fax (+995 32) 291 22 79

info@cartubank.ge

30063060l g3ngmoogmn / Mtatsminda Branch
monemabn, 0105, 3939050 J., Nel

Nel Vekua Street, 0105, Thilisi

h9gm./Tel.  (+995 32) 292 55 92/91/90
godbo/Fax (+995 32) 292 21 86
mtatsminda@cartubank.ge

30300 LG 30LE39bH0 / Vake Service Center
mo0emobn, 0179, 0. od0d0dal 4., Ne24

Ne24 |. Abashidze Street, 0179, Thilisi
ham./Tel.  (+995 32) 225 06 15
godbo/Fax (+995 32) 225 06 13
vake@cartubank.ge

LodpMmommL LgM30b396¢hGN
Saburtalo Service Center
monemobn, 0160, 393060l 4., Ne140
Ne14b Pekin Street, 0160, Thilisi
hagem./Tel.  (+995 32) 292 55 92
godbo/Fax (+995 32) 238 23 92
saburtalo@cartubank.ge

obbob Ly®30bEabhG0 / Isani Service Center
monemabon, 0144, Jgm935b gAML godd./
dmgm®3ob 9. Ne 50/18

Ne50/18 Queen Ketevan Avenue/

Bochorma St., 0144, Thilisi

gm./Tel.  (+995 32) 292 55 92

godbo/Fax (+995 32) 274 58 65
isani@cartubank.ge
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Juomonbob gogmoomo / Kutaisi Branch
Jymonbon, 4600, g3oemnodznmob J., Ned
Ne4 Paliashvili Street, 4600, Kutaisi
Oam./Tel.  (+995 431) 25 65 65
030dbo/Fax (+995 431) 25 65 60
kutaisi@cartubank.ge

d0mydol oo / Batumi Branch
domydn, 6000, gOHndmgm3aab J., Ne2
Ne2 Griboedov Street « 6000, Batumi
hgm./Tel.  (+995 422) 27 59 00
goqbo/Fax (+995 422) 27 65 04
batumi@cartubank.ge

3mMob LG 30L396¢h0 / Gori Service Center
3mGa0, 1400, bhoemnbal 3odd., Ne10

Ne10 Stalin Avenue « 1400, Gori

hagm./Tel.  (+995 370) 27 76 71

oqbo/Fax (+995 370) 27 76 74
gori@cartubank.ge

mgmoz0l bgG30LE9bHE0 / Telavi Service Center
®9mo30, 2200, $o3%030d0lb dmgoba
Chavchavadze Square ¢ 2200, Telavi

ham./Tel.  (+995 350) 27 09 00

oqbo/Fax (+995 350) 27 09 01
telavi@cartubank.ge

LO3M®IL3MEOIGDM 6363330 O 96306 03Jd0

CORRESPONDENT BANKS AND ACCOUNTS

Bank SWIFT Account Ne

GBP: Commerzbank AG, Frankfurt am Main COBA DE FF 400886618800GBP

CHF: Commerzbank AG, Frankfurt am Main COBA DE FF 400886618800CHF

EUR: Unicredito Italiano SPA, Milano UNCR IT MM 0995 4256

Bank of Cyprus, Nicosia BCYP CY 2N CY23002001430000005000272448
Deutsche Bank AG, Frankfurt am Main DEUT DE FF 947490910

Commerzbank AG, Frankfurt am Main COBA DE FF 400886618800EUR

Standard Chartered Bank GmbH, Frankfurt am Main SCBL DE FX 018163805

Société Générale, Paris SOGE FR PP 001013708320

BNP Paribas S.A., Paris BNPA FR PP FR7630004008970000760068026
Raiffeisen Bank Austria, Moscow Branch RZBM RU MM 30111978200000000010

RUR: Raiffeisen Bank Austria, Moscow Branch RZBM RU MM 30231810400000000007

USD: Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, New York BKTR US 33 04417110

Standard Chartered Bank, New York SCBL US 33 3582021741001

Bank of Cyprus, Nicosia BCYP CY 2N CY07002001430000005000225206
Deutsche Bank AG, Frankfurt am Main DEUT DE FF 947490900

Commerzbank AG, Frankfurt am Main COBA DE FF 400886618800USD

Unicredito Italiano SPA, Milano UNCR IT MM 0995 4258

Raiffeisen Bank Austria, Moscow Branch RZBM RU MM 30111840400000000016
Areximbank, Yerevan RKAS AM 22 100530102

201l
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE PREPARATION AND APPROVAL
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

Management is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that present fairly the
financial position of Closed Joint Stock Company Cartu Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”)
as at December 31, 2011, the consolidated results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended, in compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for:

c Properly selecting and applying accounting policies;

. Presenting information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, com-
parable and understandable information;

. Providing additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insuffi-
cient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions
on the Group’s consolidated financial position and financial performance;

c Making an assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Management is also responsible for:

c Designing, implementing and maintaining an effective and sound system of internal controls, through-
out the Group;
. Maintaining adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Group’s transactions

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Group, and
which enable them to ensure that the consolidated financial statements of the Group comply with IFRS;

o Maintaining statutory accounting records in compliance with Georgian legislation and accounting stan-
dards of Georgia;
c Taking such steps that are reasonably available to them to safeguard the assets of the Group; and Pre-

venting and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011 were authorised for issue on May 7,
2012 by the Management Board of the Group.

On behalf of the Management Board:

V‘?»r,

ﬂf

v

General Director Chief Accountant
Nodar Javakhishvili Manana Nadiradze
May 7, 2012 May 7, 2012
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Georgia

Tel.  +995 3224 45 66
Fax  +995 32 24 45 69
www.deloitte.ge

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of Joint Stock Company Cartu Bank:

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of JSC Cartu Bank (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group"), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2011, the
consolidated statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management of the Group is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial state-
ments that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the
consolidated financial statements atre free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor‘s judgment, including the as-
sessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s prepa-
ration and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity‘s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presen-
tation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated fi-
nancial position of the Group as at December 31, 2011, and its consolidated financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Jococtt & Toeicne

May 7, 2012
Thilisi, Georgia

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, a UK private company
limited by guarantee, and its network of member firms, each of which is a legally separate
and independent entity. Please see www.deloitte.com/ about for a detailed description of the
legal structure of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited and its member firms. Please see
www.deloitte.com/ru/about for a detailed description of the legal structure of Deloitte CIS.

© 2012 Deloitte & Touche LLC. All rights reserved.



CARTU BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

Interest income
Interest expense

NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE RECOVERY
OF PROVISION FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON
INTEREST BEARING FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Provision)/tecovety of provision for impairment
losses on interest bearing assets

Recovery of assets previously written off

NET INTEREST INCOME

Notes

4,25
4,25

5,24, 25

Net gain/(loss) on financial assets at fair value through profitorloss 6

Net gain on foreign exchange operations

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Provision for guarantees and other operations
Other income

NET NON-INTEREST INCOME
OPERATING (LOSS)/INCOME
OPERATING EXPENSES
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Income tax benefit/ (expense)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME
Attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Minority interest

On behalf of the Management Board:

f;,,

1

General Director

Nodar Javakhishvili

May 7, 2012, Thilisi, Georgia

The notes on pages 9-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

7

10,25

11

Year ended
December 31
2011

63,342
(25,803)

39,362

(106,249)

(66,887)

1,543
2,897
4,496

(2,750)

727
2,570

9.483
(57,404)
(17.838)

(75,242)

(64,191)
390
(63,801)

Year ended
December 31
2010

63,342
(27,223)

“2)
11,672
4,187
(2,125)
(243)
4951

35,355
174
35,529

[ 4

Chief Accountant
Manana Nadiradze

May 7, 2012, Thilisi, Georgia

CARTU BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2011
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

ASSETS:

Cash and balances with the National Bank of Georgia
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Due from banks

Loans to customers

Investments available-for-sale

Investments held to maturity

Property and equipment

Current income tax assets

Deferred income tax assets

Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Due to banks
Customer accounts
Provisions
Deferred income tax liabilities
Other liabilities
Subordinated debt

Total liabilities

EQUITY:

Equity attributable to owners of the parent:

Share capital

Additional paid in capital

Retained earnings

Total equity attributable to owners of the parent
Non-controlling interest
Total equity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

On behalf of the Management Board:

0°

General Director

Nodar Javakhishvili

May 7, 2012, Thilisi, Georgia

The notes on pages 9-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

Notes

12

13

14
15,25

16
17
11
11
18

19
20, 25
5,25
11
21
22,25

23

December 31
2011

26,789
15,479
27,601

256,152

322
6,414
12,961
620
11,767
30,147

388,252

25,998
77,306
384
2,130
126,970

232,788

81,196
24,816
48,014

154,026

1438

155,646

388,252

December 31
2010

22,555
2,901
89,278
408,089
245
18,147
13,541
132

66,646
84,770
1,184
2,439
1,950
242,512

399,501

54,716
3,817
112,578
170,736
1,048
171,786

571,287

(4

Chief Accountant
Manana Nadiradze

May 7, 2012, Thilisi, Georgia



CARTU BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

December 31, 2009

Total comprehensive
income for the year

December 31, 2010

Issue of share

Initial recognition effect of
subordinated debt issued

Total comprehensive
loss for the year

December 31, 2011

Notes

23

22

On behalf of the Management Board:

J’;,,

1

Shate Additional Retained Total equity Non- Total
capital paidin earnings attributable controlling equity
capital to owners of  interest
the parent
54,716 3,817 71,223 135,756 501 136,257
- - 35,355 35,355 174 35,529
54,716 3.817 112,578 171111 675 171,786
26,480 - - 26,480 - 26,480
- 20,999 - 20,999 - 20,999
= E (64.191) (64.191) 390 (63.801)
81,196 24,816 48,014 154,026 1,438 155,464
4

General Director

Nodar Javakhishvili

May 7, 2012, Thilisi, Georgia

Chief Accountant
Manana Nadiradze

May 7, 2012, Thilisi, Georgia

The notes on pages 9-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CARTU BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

Notes

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
(Recovery of provision)/provision for impairment
losses on interest bearing assets
Provision for guarantees and other operations
(Gain)/loss on foreign exchange operations
Depreciation and amortization expense
Change in interest accruals, net
Net loss/(gain) on operations with financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss

Cash inflow from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
Minimum reserve deposit with the National Bank of Georgia
(1,161)
Due from banks
Loans to customers
Other assets

Increase/ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Due to banks
Customer accounts
Other liabilities

Cash inflow from operating activities before taxation
Income tax recovered/(paid)

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payments for property and equipment, and intangible assets

Proceeds on disposal of property and equipment and intangible assets

Proceeds on investments at fair value through profit or loss
Payments for investments at fair value through profit or loss
Purchase of repossessed assets

Purchase of investments available-for-sale

Purchase of investments held to maturity

Proceeds on disposal of investments held to maturity

Net cash outflow from investing activities

Year ended
December 31

2011

(75,242)

106,249
(727)
2,068
1,479

(6,268)

(1,543)

26,016

32
51,639
(1,760)

(40,705)
(7,415)
484

22,006
(3.253)

18,753

ESOIWES IS

(1,424)
395
26,445
(39,023)
(11,858)
@)

Year ended
December 31
2010

41,735

(1,572)
243
(942)
1,438
(3,351)

42

37,593

(6,285)

3,633
(38,724)
(842)

43,639
(25,813)
392

18,717
(4.172)

14,545

JE S 1S/ £OA

(1,263)
83
16,841
(15,501)

(12,179)

(12,019)



CARTU BANK GROUP

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

Notes Year ended
December 31
2011

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issue of share 26,480
Proceeds from subordinated debt 71,828
Repayment of subordinated debt (165,995)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing activities (67,687)

Effect of exchange rate changes on the balance of cash

held in foreign currencies (902)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (62,743)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of the year 12 107,155
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of the year 12 43,510

Interest paid and received by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2011
amounted to GEL 26,171 thousand and GEL 59,265 thousand, respectively.

Interest paid and received by the Group during the year ended December 31, 2010
amounted to GEL 26,931 thousand and GEL 59,699 thousand, respectively.

On behalf of the Management Board:

J’;J

Year ended
December 31
2010

11,877

é

[ 4
General Director Chief Accountant
Nodar Javakhishvili Manana Nadiradze

May 7, 2012, Thilisi, Georgia May 7, 2012, Tilisi, Georgia

The notes on pages 9-56 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

1. ORGANIZATION

Closed Joint Stock Company Cartu Bank (the “Bank”) is a joint-stock bank, which was incorporated in Georgia
in 1996. The Bank is regulated by the National Bank of Georgia (the “NBG”) and conducts its business under
general license number 229. The Bank’s primary business consists of commercial activities, originating loans
and guarantees, trading with securities, foreign currencies and taking deposits.

The registered office of the Bank is located on 39a Chavchavadze Avenue, Thilisi, Georgia.
As at December 31, 2011 the Bank has two branches and six service centers operating in Tbilisi, one service
center in Gorti, one service center in Telavi, one service center in Sachkhere and branches in Kutaisi and Ba-

tumi.

The Bank is a parent company of a banking group (the “Group”), which consists of the following enterprises
consolidated in the financial statements:

Ownership interest (%)

Name Country of operation 2011 2010 Type of operation
Insurance Company Georgia 69% 69% Insurance
Cartu LL.C

Insurance Company Cartu LLC was formed as a limited liability company under the laws of Georgia on September
13, 2001. The company’s principal activity is insurance, which is mainly health insurance.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 JSC Cartu Group (Georgia) owned 100% of the Bank’s shares.
Ultimate shareholder having control over the Groups operations is Bidzina Ivanishvili.

These consolidated financial statements were authortized for issue on May 7, 2012 by the Management Board of
the Group.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepated in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“TASB”) and Interpretations issued
by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”).

Other basis of presentation criteria

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the assumption that the Group is a going con-
cern and will continue its operations for the foreseeable future. The management and shareholders have the
intention to further develop the business of the Group in Georgia both in corporate and retail segments. The
Group’s management believes that the going concern assumption is appropriate for the Group due to its suf-
ficient capital adequacy ratio and based on historical experience that short-term obligations will be refinanced
in the normal course of business.



CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands of Georgian Lari (“GEL”), unless otherwise
indicated. These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
the measurement at fair value of certain financial instruments, and the measurement at revalued amounts of
repossessed assets as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

The Group presents its consolidated statement of financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An analysis
regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the consolidated statement of financial position date
(current) and more than 12 months after the consolidated statement of financial position date (non—current)
is presented in Note 28.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement
of financial position only when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expense are not offset in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income unless required or permitted
by any accounting standard or interpretation, and as specifically disclosed in the accounting policies of the
Group.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Bank and entity controlled
by the Bank (its subsidiary) made up to December 31 each year. Control is achieved where the Bank has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by the Group.

All significant intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.
Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of subsidiaries not owned, di-
rectly or indirectly, by the Bank.

Non-controlling interests are presented separately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and
within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from parent shareholders’ equity.

Recognition of interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognized on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. The effective
interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or
group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over

the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on

CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other pre-
miums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or (where appropriate) a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down (partly written down) as a
result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter recognized using the rate of interest used to discount
the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.

Recognition of fee and commission income and expense

Loan origination fees are deferred, together with the related direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment to
the effective interest rate of the loan. Where it is probable that a loan commitment will lead to a specific lending
arrangement, the loan commitment fees are deferred, together with

the related direct costs, and recognized as an adjustment to the effective interest rate of the resulting loan.
Where it is unlikely that a loan commitment will lead to a specific lending arrangement, the loan commitment
fees are recognized in profit or loss over the remaining period of the loan commitment. Where a loan com-
mitment expires without resulting in a loan, the loan commitment fee is recognized in profit or loss on expiry.

All other commissions are recognized when services are provided.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, untestricted balances on correspondent and time deposit ac-
counts and advances to banks with original maturities within 90 days, except for margin deposits for operations
with plastic cards, which may be converted to cash within a short period of time and thus are considered liquid.
For purposes of determining cash flows, the minimum reserve deposit required by the National Bank of Geor-
gia is not included as a cash equivalent due to restrictions on its availability.

Financial instruments

The Group recognizes financial assets and liabilities in its consolidated statement of financial position when it
becomes a party to the contractual obligations of the instrument. Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets and liabilities are recognized using settlement date accounting;

Financial assets and financial liabilities ate initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly at-
tributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the fi-
nancial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
ot loss (‘FVTPL’), investments ‘held to maturity’, ‘available-for-sale’ (AFS) financial assets and ‘loans and re-
ceivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at
the time of initial recognition.



CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified as at fair value through profit or loss when the financial asset is either held for
trading or it is designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* It has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it in the near term; or

*  On initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

* Itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recog-
nition if:

*  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

*  The financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the Group's documented risk man-
agement or investment strategy, and information about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

It forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and IAS 39 “Financial Instru-
ments: Recognition and Measurement” permits the entire combined contract (asset or liability) to be des-
ignated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned
on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Investments held to maturity

Investments held to maturity are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
maturity dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Investments held-to-ma-
turity ate measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method less any impairment.

If the Group were to sell or reclassify more than an insignificant amount of investments held-to-maturity
before maturity (other than in certain specific circumstances), the entire category would be tainted and would
have to be reclassified as available-for-sale. Furthermore, the Group would be prohibited from classifying any
financial asset as held to maturity during the following two years.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Awailable-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified
as (a) loans and receivables, (2) investments held-to-maturity or (c) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

The Group has investment in unlisted shares that are not traded in an active market but that are also classified
as AFS financial assets.

CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

AFS equity investment that does not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured is stated at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period. Where the investment is disposed off or is determined to be impaired the cumulative gain or loss pre-
viously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Loans and receivables

Receivables, loans, and and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVIPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each re-
porting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future
cash flows of the financial asset have been affected.

For unlisted equity investment classified as AES, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the se-
curity below its cost would be considered to be objective evidence of its impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

*  Breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

*  Default or delinquency in interest ot principal payments; or

e It becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organization; or
* Disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets such as loans and receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually ate, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of loans and receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio, as well as observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets catried at amortized cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the fi-
nancial asset’s original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of loans and receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an al-
lowance account. When a loan or a receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized in profit or loss.



CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized,
the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognized.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, a total amount comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortization) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income is transferred from equity to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.

Renegotiated loans

Where possible, the Group seeks to restructure loans rather than to take possession of collateral. This may in-
volve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions. Once the terms have
been renegotiated any impairment is measured using the original effective interest rate as calculated before the
modification of terms and the loan is no longer considered past due. Management continually reviews rene-
gotiated loans to ensure that all criteria are met and that future payments are likely to occur. The loans continue
to be subject to an individual or collective impairment assessment, calculated using the loan’s original effective
interest rate.

Write off of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are written off against the allowance for impairment losses when deemed uncollectible.
Loans and receivables are written off after management has exercised all possibilities available to collect
amounts due to the Group and after the Group has sold all available collateral. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are reflected as an offset to the charge for impairment of financial assets in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the period of recovery.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of the financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognized where:

¢ Rights to receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

¢ The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or retained the right to receive
cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and

¢ The Group cither (a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

A financial asset is derecognized when it has been transferred and the transfer qualifies for derecognition. A
transfer required that the Group ecither (a) transfers the contractual rights to receive the asset’s cash flows; or
(b) retains the right to receive the asset’s cash flows but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash
flows to a third party. After a transfer, the Group reassesses the extent to which it has retained the risks and

CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

rewards of ownership of the transferred asset. If substantially all the risks and rewards have been retained, the
asset remains on the balance sheet. If substantially all of the risks and rewards have been transferred, the asset
is derecognized. If substantially all the risks and rewards have been neither retained nor transferred, the Group
assesses whether of not it has retained control of the asset. If it has not retained control, the asset is derecog-
nized. Where the Group retained control of the asset, it continues to recognize the asset to the extent of its
continuing involvement.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the sub-
stance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Egquity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Compound instruments

The components parts of compound instruments issued by the Group are classified separately as financial li-
abilities and equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreement. At the date of issue, the
fair value of the liability component is estimated using prevailing market interest rate for a similar non-con-
vertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortized cost basis using the effective interest
method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument's matutity date.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as due to banks, customer accounts, subordinated debt and other financial li-
abilities.

Financial liabilities, including due to banks and customer accounts, subordinated debt and other liabilities, are
initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amor-
tized cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allo-
cating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts es-
timated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or (whete appropriate) a shorter
petiod, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, can-

celled or they expire. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on sub-
stantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable is recognized in profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are initially measured at their fair values and, if not designated
as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

*  The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with TAS 37 “Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”; and

¢ The amount initially recognized less, where appropriate, cuamulative amortization recognized in accordance
with the revenue recognition policies.

Property and equipment

Initial cost of property and equipment is assessed based on actual expenses for their acquisition that comprise
purchase price, including non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributed costs of bringing the assets
to its working condition and location for intended use. Subsequent to initial recognition property and equipment
are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than freehold land and con-
struction in progress) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The esti-
mated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis at the following annual rates:

Buildings and other real estate 2%
Furniture and office fixtures 20%
Computer and office equipment 20%
Other 14%-17%
Intangible assets 10%

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the life of the related leased asset. Expenses related to repairs and
renewals are charged when incurred and included in operating expenses unless they qualify for capitalization.

The carrying amounts of property and equipment are reviewed at each reporting date to assess whether they
are recorded in excess of their recoverable amounts. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. Where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written
down to their recoverable amount; impairment is recognized in the respective period and is included in operating
expenses. After the recognition of an impairment loss the depreciation charge for property and equipment is
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(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

adjusted in future periods to allocate the assets’ revised carrying value, less its residual value (if any), on a sys-
tematic basis over its remaining useful life.

An item of property and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amorti-
zation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives from one to five years. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use
or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference be-
tween the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit or loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Assets classified as held for sale

The Group classifies a non-current assets (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be re-
covered principally trough a sale of transaction rather than though continuing use. For this to be the case the
non-current assets (or disposal group) must be available for immediate sale in its present condition subject
only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal group) and its sale must be

highly probable.

The sale qualifies are highly probable if the Group’s management is committed to a plan to sell the non-current
assets (or disposal group) and an active program to locate a buyer and complete the plan must have been ini-
tiated. Further, the non-current assets (or disposal group) must have been actively marketed for a sale at price
that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value and in addition the sale should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a complete sale within one year form the date of classification of the non-current assets (or dis-
posal group) as held for sale.

The Group measures an asset (or disposal group) classified as held for sale at the lower of its carrying amount
and fair value less cost to sell. The Group recognizes an impairment loss for the any initial or subsequent write-
down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less cost to sell if the events or changes in circumstance in-
dicate that their carrying amount may be impaired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

On an ongoing basis, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and con-
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sistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating
units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects cut-
rent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately
in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the im-
pairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because of items of income or expense that are tax-
able or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the re-
porting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated property and equipment,
due from banks, loans to customers, provisions, other assets and other liabilities except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
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not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets atising from deductible temporary differences asso-
ciated with other assets and liabilities are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be suf-
ficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substan-
tively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the re-
porting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also rec-
ognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Operating taxes

Georgia also has various other taxes, which are assessed on the Group’s activities. These taxes are included as
a component of operating expenses in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money
is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision ate expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position but are disclosed

unless the possibility of any outflow in settlement is remote. A contingent asset is not recognized in the con-
solidated statement of financial position but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
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Foreign currencies

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group, transactions in currencies other than the
Group's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise
except for:

*Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to construction in progtess for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs
on those foreign currency borrowings.

The exchange rates used by the Group in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements as at yeat-
end are as follows:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

GEL/1 US Dollar 1,6703 1,7728
GEL/1 Euro 2,1614 2,3500

Collateral

The Group obtains collateral in respect of customer liabilities where it is considered appropriate. The collateral
normally takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives the Group a claim on these assets for
both existing and future customer liabilities.

Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2, the directors are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical expeti-
ence and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies
The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving estimations (see below), that the manage-

ment has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial assets held to maturity

The directors have reviewed the Group’s held-to-maturity financial assets in the light of its capital maintenance
and liquidity requirements and have confirmed the Group’ positive intention and ability to hold those assets
to maturity. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the carrying amounts of the financial assets held to maturity
are GEL 6,414 and GEL 18,147 thousand, respectively. Details of these assets are set out in Note 16.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment of loans and receivables

The Group regularly reviews its loans and receivables to assess for impairment. The Group’s loan impairment
provisions are established to recognize incurred impairment losses in its portfolio of loans and receivables.
The Group considers accounting estimates related to allowance for impairment of loans and receivables a key
source of estimation uncertainty because (i) they are highly susceptible to change from period to period as the
assumptions about future default rates and valuation of potential losses relating to impaired loans and receiv-
ables are based on recent performance experience, and (i) any significant difference between the Group’s es-
timated losses and actual losses would require the Group to record provisions which could have a material
impact on its financial statements in future periods.

The Group uses management’s judgment to estimate the amount of any impairment loss in cases where a bor-
rower has financial difficulties and there are few available sources of historical data relating to similar borrowers.
Similarly, the Group estimates changes in future cash flows based on past performance, past customer behavior,
observable data indicating an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a group, and national or
local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management uses estimates based
on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence of impairment
similar to those in the group of loans. The Group uses management’s judgment to adjust observable data for
a group of loans to reflect current circumstances not reflected in historical data.

The allowances for impairment of financial assets in the consolidated financial statements have been determined
on the basis of existing economic and political conditions. The Group is not in a position to predict what
changes in conditions will take place in Georgia and what effect such changes might have on the adequacy of
the allowances for impairment of financial assets in future periods.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the gross loans to customers totaled GEL 388,899 thousand and GEL
445,157 thousand, respectively, and allowance for impairment losses amounted to GEL 132,747 thousand and
GEL 37,068 thousand, respectively.

Valuation of financial instruments
As described in Note 26, the Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on ob-

servable market date to estimate the fair value of certain types of financial instruments. Note 26 provide
detailed information about the key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of financial instru-
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ments, as well as the detailed sensitivity analysis for these assumptions. The directors believe that the chosen
valuation techniques and assumptions used are appropriate in determining the fair value of financial instru-
ments.

Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets representing land and buildings are measured at revalued amounts. The date of the latest
appraisal was December 31, 2011. The carrying value of revalued repossessed assets amounted to GEL 25,166
thousand and GEL 13,308 thousand as at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

Useful lives of property and equipment

Items of property and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and less any accu-
mulated impairment losses. The estimation of the useful life of an item of property and equipment is a matter
of management judgment based upon experience with similar assets. In determining the useful life of an asset,
the management considers the expected usage, estimated technical obsolescence, physical wear and tear and
the physical environment in which the asset is operated. Changes in any one of these conditions or estimates
may result in adjustments to future depreciation rates.

Recoverability of deferred tax assets

The management of the Bank is confident that no valuation allowance against deferred tax assets at the re-
porting date is considered necessary, because it is more likely that the deferred tax asset will be fully realized.
The carrying value of deferred tax assets amounted to GEL 11,767 thousand and nil as at December 31, 2011
and 2010, respectively.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (IFRSs)

The Group has adopted the following new or revised standards and interpretations issued by International Ac-
counting Standards Board and the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (the IFRIC) which
became effective for the Group’s annual consolidated financial statement for the year ended 31 December 2011:

* IFRS 3(2008) “Business Combinations” / TAS 27 “Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements” —
amendments resulting from May 2010 Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 1) transition requirements for con-
tingent consideration from a business combination that occurred before the effective date of the revised
IFRS; 2) clarification on measurement of non-controlling interests;

* IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” — amendments resulting from May 2010 Annual Improvements
to IFRSs: clarification of disclosures and release of requirement for disclosure regarding restructured loans;

*  TAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures” — (as revised in 2010) modifies the definition of a related party and
simplifies disclosures for government-related entities.

The adoption of the new or revised standards did not have any effect on the financial position or performance
of the Group, [except as following: evaluate for each particular case], and all have been retrospectively applied
in compliance with IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors”, unless otherwise
noted below.
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Amendments to LAS 24 — The disclosute exemptions introduced in IAS 24 (as revised in 2010) do not affect
the Group because the Group is not a government-related entity.

3.1 New and revised IFRSs in issue but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of this financial information, the following new standards and interpretations
were in issue, but not yet effective, and which the Group has not early adopted:

» IFRS 7 “Financial Instruments: Disclosures” — amendments enhancing disclosutes about transfers of fi-
nancial assets ';

e IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” %

e IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” ?;

+ IFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements” %

e IFRS 12 “Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities” ?;

e IFRS 13 “Fair Value Measurement” ?;

* IAS1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” —amendments to revise the way other comprehensive income
is presented %

* TAS 12 “Income Taxes” — Limited scope amendment (recovery of underlying assets) *;

e TAS 27 — reissued as TAS 27 “Separate Financial Statements” (as amended in May 2011) %

o TAS 28 — reissued as TAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” (as amended in May 2011) °.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011, with earlier application permitted.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

Each of the five standards becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013, with
earlier application permitted if all the other standards in the ‘package of five’ are also early applied (except
for IFRS 12 that can be applied carlier on its own).

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012, with early adoption permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012, with earlier application permitted.

Amendments to IFRS 7 — The amendments introduce additional disclosures, designed to allow users of fi-
nancial statements to improve their understanding of transfer transactions of financial assets (for example, se-
curitizations), including understanding the possible effects of any risks that may remain with the entity that
transferred the assets. The amendments also require additional disclosutes if a disproportionate amount of
transfer transactions are undertaken around the end of a reporting period.

Retrospective application is required in accordance with IAS 8 with the exception that in the first year of ap-
plication, an entity need not provide comparative information for the disclosutes required by the amendments
for periods beginning before July 1, 2011. The Group does not expect this amendment to have a material effect
on its financial position or results of operations.

IFRS 9 —was issued in November 2009 and amended in October 2010 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and for derecognition.

* IFRS 9 requires all recognized financial assets that are within the scope of TAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
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flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
outstanding are generally measured at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent
accounting periods.

*  The most significant effect of IFRS 9 regarding the classification and measurement of financial liabilities
relates to the accounting for changes in fair value of a financial liability (designated as at fair value through
profit or loss) attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability. Specifically, under IFRS 9, for fi-
nancial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change in the fair
value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognized
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's credit
risk in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit tisk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Previously, under TAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as at fair value through profit or loss was recognized in profit or loss.

The Group management anticipate that IFRS 9 that will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial state-
ments for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the application of the new Standard will have a
significant impact on amounts reported in respect of the Groups’ financial assets and financial liabilities. However,
it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements — replaces all of the guidance on control and consolidation in
IAS 27 and SIC-12 by introducing a single consolidation model for all entities based on control, irrespective
of the nature of the investee (i.e. whether an entity is controlled through voting rights or through other con-
tractual arrangements as is common in special purpose entities). Under IFRS 10, the single definition of control,
accompanied by extensive application guidance, is based on whether an investor has:

¢ power over the investee;

* exposure, ot rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

e the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements — replaces IAS 31 with new accounting requirements for joint arrangements
by classifying them as either joint operations or joint ventures (the jointly controlled assets’ classification exists
no more).

* In recognizing their rights and obligations arising from the arrangement, the parties should no longer focus
on the legal structure of the joint arrangement, but rather on how rights and obligations are shared by them.

* Ajoint operation gives parties to the arrangement direct rights to the assets and obligations for the liabilities.
Thus, a joint operator recognizes its interest based on its involvement in the joint operation (i.e. based on its
direct rights and obligations) rather than on the participation interest it has in the joint arrangement. A party
to a ‘joint operation’ recognizes assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses arising from the arrangement.

* A joint venture gives the parties rights to the net assets or outcome (profit or loss) of the arrangement.
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 “Investments in As-
sociates”. Entities can no longer account for an interest in a joint venture using the proportionate consol-
idation method. A party to a joint venture’ recognizes an investment.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities — requitres enhanced disclosutres about both consolidated
and unconsolidated entities in which an entity has involvement, so that financial statement users are able to
evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects associated with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates,
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joint arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities. Thus, IFRS 12 sets out the required disclosures for
entities reporting under the two new standards, IFRS 10 and IFRS 11 and replaces the disclosure requirements
currently found in IAS 28.

IAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements — includes the provisions on separate financial statements
that are left almost unchanged after the control provisions of IAS 27 have been replaced with the new IFRS 10.

LAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventares — now includes the requirements for joint
ventures, as well as associates, to be equity accounted following the issue of IFRS 11.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement — aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a
precise definition of fair value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requitements to
use across IFRSs. The Standard:

e defines fair value;

* sets out in a single IFRS a framework for measuring fair value;

* requires disclosures about fair value measurements.

IFRS 13 applies when another IFRS requires or permits fair value measurements or disclosures about fair value
measutements (and measurements, such as fair value less costs to sell, based on fair value or disclosures about
those measurements), except for share-based payment transactions within the scope of IFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions within the scope of IAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have some simi-
larities to fair value but that are not fair value, such as net realizable value in IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in TAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

The Group is currently assessing the impact of the amended standard on its consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to LAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements — revise the way other comprehensive income
is presented.

The amendments to IAS 1:

e Preserve the amendments made to IAS 1 in 2007 to require profit or loss and OCI to be presented together,
i.e. either as a single 'statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income', ot a separate 'statement of
profit or loss' and a 'statement of comprehensive income' — rather than requiring a single continuous state-
ment as was proposed in the exposure draft;

*  Require entities to group items presented in OCI based on whether they ate potentially classifiable to profit
or loss subsequently. i.e. those that might be reclassified and those that will not be reclassified;

*  Require tax associated with items presented before tax to be shown separately for each of the two groups
of OClI items (without changing the option to present items of OCI either before tax or net of tax).

The Group does not expect this amendment to have a material effect on its financial position or results of op-
erations.

Amendment to LAS 12 Income Taxes — provide a presumption that recovery of the carrying amount of an
asset measured using the fair value model in TAS 40 Investment Property will, normally, be through sale.

Retrospective application is required in accordance with IAS 8. The Group is considering the impact of the
amendment on the consolidated financial statements and the timing of its application.
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4. NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized cost:
Interest income on impaired financial assets
Interest income on unimpaired financial assets

Total interest income

Interest income on financial assets recorded at amortized cost comptises:
Interest on loans to customers
Interest on balances due from banks
Interest on investments held-to-maturity

Total interest income on financial assets recorded at amortised cost

Interest expense

Interest expense on financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost comprise:

Interest on subordinated debt
Interest on customer accounts
Interest on deposits from banks

Total interest expense on financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost

Net intetest income before recovety of provision/(provision)
for impairment losses on interest bearing financial assets

Year ended
December 31
2011

33,117
32,048

(19,773)
(3,027)
(3.003)

(25.803)

39,362

5. ALLOWANCE FOR IMPAIRMENT LOSSES AND OTHER PROVISIONS

The movements in allowance for impairment losses on interest bearing assets were as follows:

Loans to

customers

December 31, 2009 38,640
Recovery of provisions 1,572
December 31, 2010 37,068
Additional provisions recognized 106,249
Write-off of assets (10,570
December 31, 2011 132,747

Year ended
December 31
2010

29,037
34,305
63,342
61,073

1,551
718

(21,902)
(3,520)
(1.801)

(27,223)

36,119
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The movements in other provisions were as follows:

Other assets

December 31, 2009 =
Additional provisions recognized 21
Write-off of assets a8)
December 31, 2010 3

Additional provisions recognized/

(recovery of provisions)/ 73
Write-off of assets (76)
December 31, 2011 -

Guarantees

962

222

1,184

(800)

384

Total

962

243
as)

1,187

6. NET GAIN/LOSS ON FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Net gain on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprises:

Year ended Year ended
December 31,2011  December 31, 2010
Net gain/(loss) on operations with financial assets initially
recognized at fair value through profit and loss comprise:
Realized gain on trading operations 23,403 5,542
Realized loss on trading operations (21,860 5,584
Total net gain/(loss) on operations with financial
assets designated at fair value through profit or loss 1,543 (42)
7. NET GAIN ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE OPERATIONS
Net gain on foreign exchange operations comprises:
Year ended Year ended
December 31,2011  December 31, 2010
Dealing, net 4,965 10,730
Translation differences, net 2,068 942
Total net gain on foreign exchange operations 2,897 11,672
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8. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE 10. OPERATING EXPENSES

Fee and commission income and expense comprise: Operating expenses comprise:

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 31,2011  December 31, 2010 December 31,2011  December 31, 2010
Fee and commission income: Staff costs 7,567 8,201
Plastic cards operations 1,789 1,375 Charity and sponsorship 1,907 1,773
Settlements 1,095 1,233 Operating leases 1,713 1,824
Documentary operations 920 841 Depreciation and amortization 1,479 1,438
Cash operations 519 515 Professional services 1,015 317
Foreign exchange operations 2 10 Communication expenses 746 717
Other 171 213 Security expenses 579 514
Postal expenses 361 363
Total fee and commission income 4,496 4,187 Utilities 217 194
T T Taxes, other than income tax 171 177
Fee and commission expense: Property and equipment maintenance 157 242
Plastic catds services (1,994) (1,490) Representative expenses 68 99
Documentary operations (365) (290) Advertising expenses 62 83
Settlements (264) (250) Business trip expenses 42 48
Cash operations (14) 3) Training 19 38
Other 113) (86) Other expenses 1,735 1,023
Total fee and commission expense (2,750) (2,125) Total operating expenses 17,838 17,051
9. OTHER INCOME 11. INCOME TAXES
Other income comprises: The Group provides for income taxes based on the tax accounts maintained and prepared in accordance with
the tax regulations of Georgia, which differs from IFRS.
Year ended Year ended
December 31,2011  December 31, 2010 The Group is subject to certain permanent tax differences due to the non-tax deductibility of certain expenses
and a tax free regime for certain income.
Insurance premiums 1,885 987
Legal income 165 78 Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
Fines and penalties received 11 3,643 liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes. Temporary differences as at
Recovery of assets written-off - 08 December 31, 2011 and 2010 relate mostly to different methods of income and expense recognition as well as
Other 509 175 to recorded values of certain assets.
Total other income 2,570 4,951 The tax rate used for the reconciliations below is the corporate tax rate of 15% payable by corporate entities

in Georgia on taxable profits under tax law in that jurisdiction.
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Temporary differences as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 comprise:

December 31, 2011
Property and equipment (5,742)
Other assets (558)
Other liabilities (15)
Loans to customers 84,032
Provisions for guarantees and other operations 631
Subordinated debt 100
Net deferred tax (liability)/asset at the statutory tax rate (15%) 11,767
Loss catry forward -
Net deferred tax asset/ (liability) 11,767

December 31, 2010

(3,607)
(581)

6
(13,435)
1,358

(2,439)

(2,439)

Relationships between tax expenses and accounting profit for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010

are explained as follows:

Year ended

December 31, 2011
(Loss)/Profit before income tax 75,242)
Tax at the statutory tax rate (15%) (11,286)
Permanent differences (155)
Income tax (benefit)/expense (11,441)
Current income tax expense 2,765
Deferred tax (benefit)/expense recognized in the current year (14,206
Income tax (benefit)/expense (11,441)
Deferred income tax (liabilities)/asset 2011
As at January 1 - deferred tax (liabilities)/assets (2,439)
Change in deferred income tax balances recognized
in consolidated profit ot loss 14,206
As at December 31- deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 11,767

Year ended
December 31, 2010

41,735

CARTU BANK GROUP
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(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

12. CASH AND BALANCES WITH THE NATIONAL BANK OF GEORGIA (THE “NBG”)

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Cash 10,327 11,631
Balances with the NBG 16,462 10,924
Total cash and balances with the NBG 26,789 22,555

The obligatory minimum reserve deposits with the NBG included in the balances with the NBG are restricted
balances of GEL 10,629 thousand and GEL 4,344 thousand, respectively, as at December 31, 2011 and 2010.
The Group is required to maintain minimum reserve deposits at the NBG at all times.

Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash flows comprise the following:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Cash and balances with the NBG 26,789 22,555
Due from banks (Note 28) 27,350 88,944
Less minimum reserve deposits with the NBG 10,629) 4,344
Total cash and cash equivalents 43,510 107,155

13. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Financial assets held for trading:

Equity securities 15479 2,901
Total financial assets at fair value through profit ot loss 15,479 2,901

The Group estimates changes in fair value due to credit risk, by estimating the amount of change in the fair
value that is not due to changes in market conditions that give rise to market risks.

14. DUE FROM BANKS

Due from banks comprise:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Time deposits 9,197 67,631
Correspondent accounts 18,404 21,647
Total due from banks 27,601 89,278
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Included in due from banks is accrued interest in the amount of GEL 3 thousand and GEL 54 thousand as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Group had balances due from one and two banks, respectively, with
individual exposure exceeding 10% of the Group’s equity.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 included in balances due from banks are guarantee deposits placed by the
Group for its operations with plastic cards totaling GEL 251 thousand and GEL 334 thousand, respectively.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the maximum credit risk exposure on due from banks amounted to GEL
27,601 thousand and GEL 89,278 thousand, respectively.
15. LOANS TO CUSTOMERS

Loans to customers comprise:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Originated loans to customers 365,951 428,160
Accrued interest 22,948 16,997

388,899 445,157
Less allowance for impairment losses (132.747) (37.068)
Total loans to customers 256,152 408,089

Movements in the allowance for impairment losses for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 are dis-
closed in Note 5.

The table below summarizes carrying value of loans to customers analyzed by type of collateral obtained by
the Group:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Loans collateralized by pledge of real estate, equipment and inventories 240,078 373,064
Loans collateralized by pledge of cash 3,403 22,682
Other collateral 6,836 6,185
Unsecured loans 5,835 6.158
Total loans to customers 256,152 408,089

CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Analysis by sector:

Construction 81,564 107,646
Trade and services 97,971 159,632
Manufacturing 33,501 59,937
Individuals 19,690 48,106
Agticulture 7,064 14,128
Transport and communication 527 3,033
Energy 242 2,870
Other 15,593 12,737
Total loans to customers 256,152 408,089

During the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Group received financial and non-financial assets by
taking possession of collateral it held as security. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 such assets in amount of
GEL 25,166 thousand and GEL 13,308 thousand, respectively, are included in other assets of the Group.

Loans to individuals comprise the following products:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Consumer loans 5,163 21,342
Mortgage loans 14,467 9,886
Other 60 16,878
Total loans to individuals 19,690 48,106

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 allowance for impairment losses to individuals amounted to GEL 6,957
thousand and GEL 2,367 thousand, respectively.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the Group granted loans to seven and two customers, totaling GEL 117,268
thousand and GEL 35,438 thousand, respectively, which individually exceeded 10% of the Group’s equity.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 a maximum credit risk exposure on loans to customers amounted to
GEL 256,152 thousand and GEL 408,089 thousand, respectively.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 all loans were granted to companies operating in Georgia, which repre-
sents a significant geographical concentration.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 loans to customers included loans totaling GEL 136,340 thousand and
GEL 187,704 thousand, respectively, whose terms were renegotiated. Otherwise these loans would be past
due or impaired.
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16. INVESTMENTS HELD TO MATURITY 18. OTHER ASSETS
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 Other assets comprise:
Nominal Amount Nominal Amount December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
annual annual Other financial assets:
interest rate interest rate Accounts receivable 928 746
Deposit certificates of the o )
Ministry of Finance of Georgia 7.70%-8.50% 6,500 | 9.00%-9.80% 18,367 Less allowance for impairment of other financial assets - 6]
Less discount 86 (220)
(&80 Total other financial assets 928 743
Total investments held to maturity 6,414 18,147
— - Other non-financial assets:
17. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT RCpOSS@SSCd assets 25,1()6 13,308
_ ' Intangible assets 1,629 1,499
Property and equipment comprise: Tax settlements, other than income tax 1,275 77
Buildings and Furniture Computer  Leasehold Construction Total Advances paid
other real and and office improvements in progress 725 346
estate fixtures equipment and other Inventory 407 396
At cost Other 17 30
December 31, 2009 4,945 4,409 2,745 1,734 3,953 17,786
Total oth: 1 1
Additions . 304 272 ) 509 1,127 otat otherassets 30,147 16,59
Transfers 1,513 284 7 317 (2,153) (32) M 1 the all for | ) ! ] h for th  ended ber 31. 2011
Disposals B (58) 167) a8 . (243) ovements 1n.t e al oxyance or impairment losses on other assets for the years ended December 31, 20
and 2010 are disclosed in Note 5.
December 31, 2010 6,458 4,939 2,857 2,075 2,309 18,638
Repossessed assets as at December 31, 2011 and 2010 include land and buildings in the amount of GEL 25,166
Additions = 61 285 19 732 1,097 thousand and GEL 13,308 thousand, respectively, which are measured lower of its carrying amount and fair
Transfers 2,558 180 70 31 (2,839) value less cost to sell. The repossessed assets have been revalued by independent appraiser as at December 31,

Disposals (103) (116) (260) (513) 27 (1,019) 2011 and 2010. The following methods were used for the estimation of their fair value: discounted cash flow

method (income approach), direct sales comparison method (comparative approach). For the estimation of
December 31, 2011 8913 5,064 2952 1,612 175 18,716

the final value, following weights were assigned to the results obtained using different approaches: discounted

cash flow method —30-40% and direct sales comparison approach — 60%-70%, depending on the degree to

Bagiin kil depiadhiron which the estimates met the following characteristics: reliability and completeness of the information, specifics

December 31, 2009 430 1,664 1,420 504 - 4,018 .
of the estimated property, and other.

Depreciation charge 160 534 346 199 - 1,239

Eliminated on disposals - 10) (138) a2 - (160)

December 31, 2010 590 2,188 1,628 091 - 5,097

Depreciation charge 206 532 343 204 - 1,285

Eliminated on disposals 103 on (255) (178) - (627)

December 31, 2011 693 2,629 1.716 717 - 5,755

Net book value

As at December 31,2011 8,220 2,435 1,236 895 175 12,961

As at December 31,2010 5,868 2,751 1,229 1,384 2,309 13,541

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 included in property and equipment were fully depreciated assets totaling
GEL 1,128 thousand and GEL 952 thousand, respectively.
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Intangible assets

At cost

December 31, 2009 2,359
Additions 136
Disposals (210)
December 31, 2010 2,285
Additions 327
Disposals 59
December 31, 2011 2,553

Accumulated amortization

December 31, 2009 797
Charge for the year 199
Eliminated on disposals (210)
December 31, 2010 786
Charge for the year 194
Eliminated on disposals (56)
December 31, 2011 924
Net book value
December 31, 2011 1,629
December 31, 2010 1,499
19. DUE TO BANKS
Due to banks comprise:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Correspondent accounts of other banks 97 37,184
European Bank of Reconstruction
and Development (the “EBRD”) 14,302 20,257
Black Sea Trade and Development Bank (the “BSTDB) 11,599 9.205
Total due to banks 25,998 66,646

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 accrued interest expenses included in due to banks amounted to GEL 923
thousand and GEL 866 thousand, respectively.

CARTU BANK GROUP
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The Group is obligated to comply with financial covenants in relation to certain due to banks disclosed above.
These covenants include stipulated ratios, debt to equity ratios and various other financial performance ratios.
During the year ended December 31, 2011 the Group has breached the following ratio set by the EBRD —
Ratio of 20 largest Exposure. The Group has obtained a waiver from EBRD for this financial covenant as at
February 27, 2012 for the year ending December 31, 2011. As at December 31, 2011 balances due to EBRD
amounted to GEL 14,302 thousand.

20. CUSTOMER ACCOUNTS

Customer accounts comprise:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Time deposits 19,871 28,656
Repayable on demand 57,435 56,114
Total customer accounts 77,306 84,770

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 accrued interest expenses included in customer accounts amounted to
GEL 383 thousand and GEL 432 thousand, respectively.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 customer accounts totaling GEL 241 thousand and GEL 7,017 thousand,
respectively, were held as security against guarantees issued by the Group.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 customer accounts totaling GEL 33,306 thousand and GEL 24,013 thou-
sand (43% and 28% of total customer accounts), respectively, were due ten and nine customers, which repre-
sents a significant concentration.

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Analysis by economic sectot/customer type:

Individuals 31,072 34,407
Trade and services 19,343 39,129
Construction 5,950 1,469
Transport and communication 1,835 2,686
Manufacturing 1,733 1,853
Agriculture 351 649
Energy 139 489
Other 16,883 4,088
Total customer accounts 77,306 84,770

21. OTHER LIABILITIES

Other liabilities comprise:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Other financial liabilities:

Accounts payable 32 432
Other non-financial liabilities:

Taxes payable, other than income tax 172 23
Insurance reserves 1,045 1,349
Other 881 146

Total other liabilities

2,130

1,950
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22. SUBORDINATED DEBT

Subordinated debt comprises:

FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI L.TD
FinService-XXI L.TD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI LTD
FinService-XXI L.TD
FinService-XXI L.TD
FinService-XXI L.TD
FinService-XXI L.TD
FinService-XXI L.TD

Inter Consulting Plus LTD
Inter Consulting Plus LTD
Inter Consulting Plus LTD

Georgian Holding LTD
Christa Enterprises LTD

Total subordinated debt

USD
USD
USD
USD
UsSD
UsSD
UsSD
UsSD
UsSD
UsSD
UsD
UsD
usD
UsD
UsD
UsD
UsSD
UsD
UsSD
USD
USD
USD

USD
UsSD
UsSD

USD
USD

date

28-Dec-21
31-Mar-26
31-Mar-26
9-Feb-12
13-Dec-11
22-Jun-14
1-Nov-14
11-May-12
12-Jul-14
17-Jul-14
25-Oct-11
27-Nov-11
26-Jun-15
26-Apr-12
28-Jun-14
2-Oct-14
26-Sep-14
24-Aug-14
31-Jan-15
24-Dec-14
28-Dec-11
20-Sep-14

22-Jun-14
17-Oct-25
2-Oct-14

22-Jun-14
28-Feb-17

Currency Maturity Interest
rate %

5%
2%
2%
9%
9%
5%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%
9%

5%
5%
5%

5%
5%

December 31,

2011

5,016
34,506
11,381

December 31,
2010

17,824
17,807
17,741
8,930
8,908
8,906
8,895
8,877
8,877
8,875
8,875
8,871
8,871
7,987
7,103
7,091
5,328
5,322
4444
179,532

17,741
12,419

8871
39,031

17,741
6,208
23,949

242,512
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As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 accrued interest expense included in subordinated debt amounted to GEL
148 thousand and GEL 524 thousand, respectively.

In the event of bankruptcy or liquidation of the Group, repayment of this debt is subordinate to the repayments
of the Group’s liabilities to all other creditors.

On 31 March and 13 December 2011 the Group signed subordinated loan agreement with Finservice- XXI
LTD both maturing on March 31, 2026. According to the agreement the loan is convertible to equity at maturity.
The interest is payable annually in arrears at a nominal annual interest rate of 2 per cent. When the loan was
taken, the prevailing market interest rate for similar loan without conversion options was 5 per cent.

23. SHARE CAPITAL

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 share capital consisted of 81,196 and 54,716 ordinary shares with par value
of GEL 1 each.
The Group’s share capital comprises of the following number of shares:

Share capital Pcs’000
Ordinary shares
December 31, 2009 54,716
December 31, 2010 54,716
Issue of shares 26,480
December 31, 2010 81,196

24. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Group is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in
order to meet the needs of its customers. These instruments, involving varying degrees of credit risk, are not
reflected in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group uses the same credit control and management policies in undertaking off-balance sheet commit-
ments as it does for on-balance operations.

Provision for losses on contingent liabilities totaled GEL 384 thousand and GEL 1,184 thousand as at De-
cember 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 contingent liabilities comprise:
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Contingent liabilities and credit commitments

Guarantees issued and similar commitments 20,174 66,449
Letters of credit and other transaction related contingent obligations 8,241 988
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines 2,950 26,597
Total contingent liabilities and credit commitments 31,365 94,034



CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)
(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

Extension of loans to customers within credit line limits is approved by the Group on a case-by-case basis and
depends on borrowers’ financial performance, debt service and other conditions. As at December 31, 2011
and 2010 such unused credit lines come to GEL 2,950 thousand and GEL 26,597 thousand, respectively.

Capital commitments — The Group had no material commitments for capital expenditures outstanding as at
December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Operating lease commitments — No matetial rental commitments wete outstanding as at December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Legal proceedings — From time to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the Group are re-
ceived from customers and counterparties. Management is of the opinion that no material unaccrued losses
will be incurred and accordingly no provision has been made in these consolidated financial statements.

Taxation — Commercial legislation of Georgia, including tax legislation, may allow more than one interpreta-
tion. In addition, there is a risk of tax authorities making arbitrary judgments of business activities. If a par-
ticular treatment, based on management’s judgment of the Group’s business activities, was to be challenged by
the tax authorities, the Group may be assessed additional taxes, penalties and interest.

Such uncertainty may relate to the valuation of financial instruments, valuation of provision for impairment
losses and the market pricing of deals. Additionally such uncertainty may relate to the valuation of temporary
differences on the provision and recovery of the provision for impairment losses on loans to customers and
receivables, as an underestimation of the taxable profit. The management of the Group believes that it has ac-
crued all tax amounts due and therefore no allowance has been made in the consolidated financial statements.

On October 28, 2011 Georgian Patliament adopted amendments to Article 239 of the Tax Code and Article
82 of the Law on Enforcement Proceedings of Georgia. Pursuant to these amendments tax authorities have
received priority over secured claims of financial institution regarding any borrower in case the grounds of
origin of the tax claim secured by a tax pledge or mortgage belong to the period prior to the registration date
of the pledge/mortgage of such financial institution.

In the beginning of 2012 the amendment to the Georgian law, mentioned above, was cancelled and the priority
of mortgages was returned to the financial institutions. By the time of issuance of these financial statements
Tax Code determines the priority of mortgages/pledges according to the time of their creation. The rights
of creditors of prior rank are protected by ensuting that in case of enforcement of a tax pledge/mortgage
their claims are satisfied before those of the state.

Operating environment — The Group’s principal business activities are within Georgia. Laws and regulations
affecting the business environment in Georgia are subject to rapid changes and the Group’s assets and opera-
tions could be at risk due to negative changes in the political and business environment.

Pensions and retirement plans — Employees receive pension benefits from the Government of Georgia in
accordance with the laws and regulations of the country. As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group was
not liable for any supplementary pensions, post-retirement health care, insurance benefits, or retirement in-
demnities to its current or former employees.

Operating Environment — Emerging markets such as Georgia ate subject to different risks than more developed
markets, including economic, political and social, and legal and legislative risks. As has happened in the past,
actual or perceived financial problems or an increase in the perceived risks associated with investing in emerging
economies could adversely affect the investment climate in Georgia and the Georgia’s economy in general.
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Laws and regulations affecting businesses in Georgia continue to change rapidly. Tax, currency and customs
legislation within Georgia are subject to varying interpretations, and other legal and fiscal impediments con-
tribute to the challenges faced by entities currently operating in Georgia. The future economic direction of
Georgia is largely dependent upon economic, fiscal and monetary measures undertaken by the government,
together with legal, regulatory, and political developments.

The global financial turmoil that has negatively affected Georgia’s financial and capital markets in 2009 and 2010
has receded and Georgia’s economy returned to growth in 2011. However significant economic uncertainties remain.
Adverse changes arising from systemic risks in global financial systems, including any tightening of the credit en-
vironment could slow or disrupt Georgia’s economy, adversely affect the Group’s access to capital and cost of
capital for the Group and, more generally, its business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

25. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Transactions between the Bank and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Bank, have been eliminated
on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Group and other
related parties are disclosed below:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Related party ~ Total category  Related party Total category
balances as per the balances as per the
consolidated consolidated
financial financial
statements statements
caption caption

Loans to customers 16,414 388,899 37,623 445,157

- other related parties 16,414 37,623
Allowance for impairment losses
on loans to customers (502) (132,747) (854) (37,068)

- other related parties (502) (854)
Customer accounts 30,582 77,306 6,873 84,770

- shareholders 11,891 842

- key management personnel - 62

- other related parties 18,691 5,969
Subordinated debt 126,970 126,970 242,512 242,512

- shareholders 126,970 242512
Provisions 4 384 12 1,184

- other related parties 4 12
Letters of credit and other
transaction related contingent
obligations = 8,241 889 988

- other related parties 889
Guarantees issued and
similar commitments = 20,174 552 66,449

- other related parties 552
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The remuneration of directors and other members of key management was as follows:

Key management personnel
compensation:

- short-term employee benefits

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Related party Total category  Related party Total category
transaction as per the transaction as per the
consolidated consolidated

financial financial
statements statements

caption caption

774 7,567 722 8,201

Included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2011 and

2010 are the following amounts which were recognized in transactions with related parties:

Intetest income
- other related parties

Interest expense
- shareholders
- other related parties

Provision for impairment losses
on interest bearing assets
- other related parties

Fee and commission income
- shareholders
- key management
- other related parties

Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Related party  Total category  Related party Total category

transaction as per the transaction as per the
consolidated consolidated
financial financial
statements statements
caption caption
5,614 65,165 4,865 63,342
5,614 4,865
(19,318) (25,803) (21,972) (27,223)
(19,318) (21,972)
(301) (106,249) (256) 1,572
(250)
196 4,496 297 4187
7 3
1 1
188 293

CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

26. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between
knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction, other than in forced or liquidation sale.

Assets for which fair value approximates carrying value

For financial assets and liabilities that have a short term maturity (less than 3 months), it is assumed that the
carrying amounts approximate to their fair value. This assumption is also applied to demand deposits and sav-
ings accounts without a maturity.

Loans and advances to banks

The fair value of loans and advances to banks has been estimated using the same valuation technique for fi-
nancial instruments accounted for at fair value as described in the valuation techniques below.

Loans and advances to customers

Loans and advances to personal customers are made both at variable and at fixed rates. As there is no active
secondary market in Georgia for such loans and advances, thete is no reliable market value available for this
portfolio.

(a) Variable rate — Management believes that carrying rate may be assumed to be fair value.
(b )Fixed rate — Certain of the loans secured are at a fixed rate. Fair value has been estimated by reference to
the market rates available at the balance sheet date for similar loans of maturity equal to the remaining

fixed period.
Financial investments — available for sale

Available-for-sale financial assets valued using valuation techniques or pricing models primarily consist of un-
quoted equities and debt securities.

These assets are valued using models that use both observable and unobservable data. The non-observable
inputs to the models include assumptions regarding the future financial performance of the investee, its
risk profile, and economic assumptions regarding the industry and geographical jurisdiction in which the
investee operates.

Except as detailed below, management of the Group considers that the fair value of financial assets and liabil-
ities approximates their carrying value:
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December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying value Fair value  Carrying value Fair value
Cash and balances with the NBG 26,789 26,789 22,555 22,555
Due from banks 27,601 27,595 89,278 88,916
Loans to customers 256,152 255,100 408,089 407,212
Investments available-for-sale 322 322 245 245
Investments held to maturity 6,414 6,414 18,147 18,147
Other financial assets 928 928 743 743
Due to banks 25,998 25,738 66,646 66,429
Customer accounts 77,306 77,249 84,770 84,091
Other financial liabilities 32 32 432 432
Subordinated debt 126,970 126,970 242,512 240,777

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows.

* The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market prices (includes listed redeemable
notes, bills of exchange, debentures and perpetual notes).

*  The fair values of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding detivative instruments) are de-
termined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar instruments.

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The adequacy of the Group’s capital is monitored using, among other measures, the ratios established by the
Basel Capital Accord 1988 and the ratios established by the NBG in supervising the Group.

During the past year, the Group had complied in full with all its externally imposed capital requirements.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes subordinated debt disclosed in Note 22,
and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained earnings
as disclosed in consolidated statement of changes in equity.

The Management Board reviews the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As a part of this review, the Board
considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the Board, the Group balances its overall capital structure through payment of dividends, new share issues as
well as the issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The Group’s overall capital risk management policy remains unchanged from 2010.

The following table analyzes the Group’s regulatory capital resources for capital adequacy purposes in accor-
dance with the principles employed by the Basel Committee:
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Year ended Year ended
December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Movement in tier 1 capital:

At January 1 171,786 136,257
Net profit (64,191) 35,355
Issue of share 26,480 -
Additional paid in capital 20,999 -
Non-controlling interest 390 174
At December 31 155,464 171,786

Year ended Year ended

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Composition of regulatory capital:
Tier 1 capital:

Share capital 81,196 54,716
Additional paid in capital 24816 3,817
Retained earnings 48,014 112,205
Non-controlling interest 1,438 1,048
Total qualifying tier 1 capital 155,464 171,786
Subordinated debt (restricted to 50% of Tier 1 capital) 77,732 85,893
Less investments to companies engaged in financial activities 250 216
Total regulatory capital 232,946 257,463

Capital ratios:
Tier 1 capital 37,14% 32,84%
Total capital 55,64% 49,22%

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Group to main-
tain minimum amounts and ratios of total (8%) and tier 1 capital (4%) to risk weighted assets.

As at December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Group included in the computation of Total Capital for capital
adequacy purposes the subordinated debt received, limited to 50% of Tier 1 capital. In the event of
bankruptcy or liquidation of the Group, repayment of this debt is subordinate to the repayments of
the Group’s liabilities to all other creditors.
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28. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES

Management of risk is fundamental to the Group’s banking business and is an essential element of the Group’s
operations. The main risks inherent to the Group’s operations are those related to:

e Credit risk
¢ Liquidity risk
*  Market risk

The Group recognizes that it is essential to have efficient and effective risk management processes in place.
To enable this, the Group has established a risk management framework, whose main purpose is to protect
the Group from risk and allow it to achieve its performance objectives. Through the risk management frame-
work, the Group manages the following risks:

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk which is the risk that one patty to a financial instrument will fail to discharge
an obligation and cause the other party to incur a financial loss.

Risk management and monitoring is performed within set limits of authority. These processed ate performed
by the Credit Committees and the Group’s Management Board. Before any application is made by the Credit
Committee, all recommendations on credit processes (borrowet’s limits approved, or amendments made to loan
agreements, etc.) are reviewed and approved by the branch risk-manager or the Risk Management Department.
Daily risk management is performed by the Heads of Credit Departments and Branch Credit Divisions.

The Group structures the level of credit tisk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to one borrower, or groups of borrowers, and to industry segments. Limits on the level of credit risk
by a borrowet, industry sector are approved quarterly by the Management Board. The exposure to any one bot-
rower including banks and brokers is further restricted by sub-limits covering on and off-balance sheet exposures
which are set by the Credit Committee. Actual exposures against limits are monitored on a regular basis.

Where appropriate, and in the case of most loans, the Group obtains collateral and corporate and personal

ppropriate, > P P P
guarantees. However, some portion of loans is personal lending, where no such facilities can be obtained. Such
risks are monitored on a continuous basis and subject to annual or more frequent reviews.

Commitments to extend credit represent unused portions of credit in the form of loans, guarantees or letters
of credit. The credit risk on off-balance sheet financial instruments is defined as a probability of losses due to
the inability of counterparty to comply with the contractual terms and conditions.

With respect to credit risk on commitments to extend credit, the Group is potentially exposed to a loss in an
amount equal to the total unused commitments. However, the likely amount of the loss is less than the total
unused commitments since most commitments to extend credit are contingent upon customers maintaining
specific credit standards. The Group applies the same credit policy to the contingent liabilities as it does to the
balance sheet financial instruments, i.e. the one based on the procedures for approving the grant of loans,
using limits to mitigate the risk, and current monitoring, The Group monitors the term to maturity of off
balance sheet contingencies because longer term commitments generally have a greater degree of credit risk
than short-term commitments.
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Maxcimum exposure of credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk varies significantly and is dependent on both individual risks
and general market economy risks.

The following table presents the maximum exposute to credit risk of balance sheet and off balance sheet financial
assets. For financial assets in the balance sheet, the maximum exposure is equal to the carrying amount of those
assets prior to any offset or collateral. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit tisk under contingent liabilities
and commitments to extend credit, in the event of non performance by the other party where all counterclaims,
collateral or security prove valueless, is represented by the contractual amounts of those instruments.

Maximum exposure

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 15,479 2,901
Due from banks 27,601 89,278
Loans to customers 256,152 408,089
Investments available-for-sale 322 245
Investments held to maturity 6,414 18,147
Other financial assets 928 743
Guarantees issued and similar commitments 20,174 66,449
Commitments on loans and unused credit lines 2,950 26,597

Off — balance sheet risk

The Group applies fundamentally the same risk management policies for off-balance sheet risks as it does for
its on-balance sheet risks. In the case of commitments to lend, customers and counterparties will be subject
to the same credit management policies as for loans and advances. Collateral may be sought depending on the
strength of the counterparty and the nature of the transaction.

Credit quality by classes of financial assets

As at December 31, 2011:

Neither past

due nor

Past due Individually Collectively (Impairment Total
but not impaired  impaired  allowance)

individually individually

impaired  impaired
Balances with the NBG 16,462 - - - - 16,462
Due from banks 27,601 - - - - 27,601
Loans to customers 132,759 8,298 233,189 14,653 (132,747) 256,152
Investments available-for-sale 322 - - - - 322
Investments held to maturity 6,414 - - - = 6,414
Other financial assets 928 - - - - 928
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As at December 31, 2010:

Neither past Past due Individually Collectively (Impairment Total
due nor butnot  impaired impaired  allowance)
individually individually
impaired  impaired

Balances with the NBG 10,924 - - - - 10,924
Due from banks 89,278 - - - - 89,278
Loans to customers 180,318 8,747 166,474 89,618 (37,068) 408,089
Investments available-for-sale 245 - - - - 245
Investments held to maturity 18,147 - - - - 18,147
Other financial assets 743 - - - - 743

Financial assets are graded according to the current credit rating they have been issued by an internationally
regarded agency such as Fitch. The highest possible rating is AAA. Investment grade financial assets have
ratings from AAA to BBB. Financial assets which have ratings lower than BBB are classed as speculative grade.
As at December 31, 2011 and 2010 the balances with the NBG amounted to GEL 16,462 thousand and GEL
10,924 thousand, respectively. The credit rating of Georgia according to the international rating agencies cot-
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The banking industry is generally exposed to credit risk through its loans to customers and inter bank deposits.
With regard to the loans to customers this risk exposure is concentrated within Georgia.

The exposure is monitored on a regular basis to ensure that the credit limits and credit worthiness guidelines
established by the Group’s risk management policy are not breached.

Geographical concentration
The Assets and Liabilities Committee (“ALCO”) exercises control over the risk in the legislation and regulatory
arena and assesses its influence on the Group’s activity. This approach allows the Group to minimize potential

losses from the investment climate fluctuations in Georgia.

The geographical concentration of assets and liabilities is set out below:

responded to investment level <BBB.

The following table details credit ratings of financial assets held by the Group as at December 31, 2011:

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not Total at

rated December

31, 2010

Balances with the NBG - - - - 16,462 - 16,462
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - - 862 - - 14,617 15,479

Due from banks - 1,141 13472 - 9,848 3,140 27,601

Loans to customers - - - - - 256,152 256,152

Investments available-for-sale - - - - - 322 322

Investments held to maturity = = = - 6414 = 6,414

Other financial assets - - - - - 928 928

As at December 31, 2010:

AAA AA A BBB <BBB Not Total at

rated December

31, 2009

Balances with the NBG - - - 10,924 - - 10,924
Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss - - 820 90 - 1,991 2,901

Due from banks = 16,527 6,301 460 65,990 = 89,278

Loans to customers - - - - - 408,089 408,089

Investments available-for-sale - - - - - 245 245

Investments held to maturity - - - 18,147 - - 18,147

Other financial assets - - - - - 743 743

Georgia Other OECD  December 31
non-OECD countries 2011
countries Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the NBG 26,789 - - 26,789
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 106 15,373 15,479
Due from banks 11,909 14,192 1,500 27,601
Loans to customers 256,152 - - 256,152
Investments available-for-sale 322 = = 322
Investments held to maturity 6,414 - - 6,414
Other financial assets 928 > = 928
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 302,514 14,298 16,873 333,685
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks 95 = 25,903 25,998
Customer accounts 74,911 1,525 870 77,306
Other financial liabilities 32 = = 32
Subordinated debt 121,106 5,86 = 126,970
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 196,144 7,389 26,773 230,306
NET POSITION 106,370 6,909 (9,900)
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Georgia Other OECD December 31
non-OECD countries 2010
countries Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the NBG 22,555 - - 22,555
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 265 2,636 2,901
Due from banks 65,986 891 22,401 89,278
Loans to customers 407,612 - 477 408,089
Investments available-for-sale 245 = = 245
Investments held to maturity 18,147 - - 18,147
Other financial assets 743 > > 743
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 515,288 1,156 25,514 541,958
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks 37,183 1 29,462 66,646
Customer accounts 84,046 185 539 84,770
Other financial liabilities 432 = = 432
Subordinated debt 236,303 6,20 = 242,512
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 357.964 6,395 30,001 394,360
NET POSITION 157,324 (5,239) (4,487)
Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk management

Liquidity risk refers to the availability of sufficient funds to meet deposit withdrawals and other financial com-
mitments associated with financial instruments as they actually fall due.

The ALCO controls these types of risks by means of maturity analysis, determining the Group’s strategy for
the next financial period. Current liquidity is managed by the Treasury Department, which deals in the money
markets for current liquidity support and cash flow optimization.

In order to manage liquidity risk, the Group performs daily monitoring of future expected cash flows on
clients’ and banking operations, which is a part of assets/liabilities management process.

The Management Board sets limits on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet deposit
withdrawals and on the minimum level on interbank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to
cover withdrawals at unexpected levels of demand.

Further is analysis of liquidity and interest rate risks:

(a) term to maturity of financial liabilities, that are not derivatives, calculated for non-discounted cash flows on financial
liabilities (main debt and interests) on the eatliest date, when the Group will be liable to redeem the liability;

(b) term to maturity of financial liabilities, that are derivatives, calculated for non-discounted cash flows on fi-
nancial liabilities on the eatliest date, when the Group will be liable to redeem the liability; and

(c) estimated term till maturity of financial assets, that are not derivatives, calculated for non-discounted cash flows
on financial assets (including interests), which will be received on these assets based on contractual terms of
maturity, except the cases when the Group expects that cash flows will be received in the different time.

An analysis of the liquidity by classes of financial assets and financial liabilities, and interest rate risks is pre-

sented in the following table. The presentation below is based upon the information provided internally to key
management personnel of the Group.
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Upto 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over

1 month 3 month to lyear 5years 5 years
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Due from banks 9,197 - - - -
Loans to customers 27,828 1,008 28,653 95,996 102,667
Investments held to maturity 1,000 4,000 1414 = >
Total interest bearing financial assets 38,025 5,008 30,067 95,996 102,667
Cash and balances with the NBG 26,789 - - - -
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 15,479 - - - -
Due from banks 18,404 - - - -
Investments available-for-sale - - - 322 -
Other financial assets 928 = = = >
Total financial assets 99,625 5,008 30,067 96,318 102,667
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks - - 10,893 13,648 1,361
Customer accounts 7,597 4,902 10,488 2,142 12
Subordinated debt 147 - - 41,758 85,065
Total interest bearing
financial liabilities 7,744 4,902 21,381 57,548 86,438
Due to banks 96 - - - -
Customer accounts 52,165 - - -
Other financial liabilities 32 = = = >
Total financial liabilities 60,037 4,902 21,381 57,548 86,438
Interest sensitivity gap 30,281 106 8,686 38448 16,229
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap 30,281 30,387 39,073 77,521 93,750
Liquidity gap 39,588 106 8,686 38,770 16,229
Cumulative liquidity gap 39,588 39,694 48,380 87,150 103,379

December 31
2011
Total

9,197
256,152
6,414

25,902
25,141
126,970
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Upto 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over December 31
1 month 3 month to lyear 5years 5 years 2010
Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Due from banks 64,541 2,352 266 - - 67,159
Loans to customers 17,263 11,395 22,243 65,214 291,974 408,089
Investments held to maturity 6,343 10,338 1,466 = = 18,147
Total interest bearing financial assets ~ 88,147 24,085 23975 65214 291,974 493,395
Cash and balances with the NBG 22,555 - - - - 22,555
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss 2,901 - - - - 2,901
Due from banks 22,119 - - - - 22,119
Investments available-for-sale - - - 245 - 245
Other financial assets 743 - - - - 743
Total financial assets 136,465 24,085 23975 65,459 291,974 541,958
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks 57,317 - 9,205 - - 66,522
Customer accounts 23,086 4,047 17,933 2,984 283 48,333
Subordinated debt - - 40,884 183,000 18,628 242,512
Total interest bearing
financial liabilities 80,403 4,047 68,022 185984 18911 357,367
Due to banks 124 - - - - 124
Customer accounts 35,268 151 693 325 - 36,437
Other financial liabilities 432 - - - - 432
Total financial liabilities 116,227 4,198 68,715 186,309 18911 394,360
Interest sensitivity gap 7,744 20,038  (44,047) (120,770) 273,063
Cumulative interest
sensitivity gap 7,744 27,782  (16,265) (137,035) 136,028
Liquidity gap 20,238 19.887  (44740) (120,850) 273,063
Cumulative liquidity gap 20,238 40,125 (4,615) (125,465) 147,598
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An analysis of liquidity and interest rate risk is presented in the following table. The presentation below is
based upon the information provided internally to key management personnel of the Group. The amounts
disclosed in these tables do not correspond to the amounts recorded in the consolidated statement of financial
position as the presentation below includes a maturity analysis for financial liabilities that indicates the total re-
maining contractual payments (including interest payments), which are not recognized in the consolidated state-
ment of financial position under the effective interest rate method.

Weighted Upto 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over December 31

average 1 month 3 month to lyear 5years 5 years 2011

effective Total
interest rate

FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES

Due to banks 2,35% 1,089 2,171 9,772 14,271 725 28,028
Customer accounts 7,70% 8,746 4,867 10,129 3,115 12 26,869
Subordinated Debt 5.00% 242 439 1,953 55,517 68,819 126,970

Total interest bearing

financial liabilities 10,007 7,477 21,854 72,903 69,556 181,867
Due to banks 96 - - - - 96
Customer accounts 53,824 35 630 389 28 54,906
Other financial liabilities 32 = = = = 32
TOTAL FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES 63,959 7,512 22,484 73,292 69,584 263,901

Weighted Upto 1monthto 3 months 1yearto Over December 31

average 1month 3 month to lyear 5years 5years 2010

effective Total
interest rate

FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES

Due to banks 1,34% 58,203 98 9,500 = = 67,801
Customer accounts 9,10% 23,452 4,621 19,379 3875 412 51,739
Subotdinated debt 9,00% 1.667 5,001 55,886 231970 27,011 321,535
Total interest bearing

financial liabilities 83,322 9,720 84,765 235845 27,423 441,075
Due to banks 124 = = = = 124
Customer accounts 35,268 151 693 325 = 36,437
Other financial liabilities 432 - - = = 432
TOTAL FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES 119,146 9,871 85,458 236,170 27,423 478,068
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Market risk

Market risk covers interest rate risk, currency risk and other pricing risks to which the Group is exposed. There
have been no changes as to the way the Group measures risk or to the risk it is exposed.

The Group is exposed to intetest rate risks as the Group borrows funds at both fixed and floating rates. The
risk is managed by the Group maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings.
The ALCO also manages interest rate and market risks by matching the Group’s interest rate position, which
provides the Group with a positive interest margin. The Department of Financial Supervision conducts mon-
itoring of the Group’s current financial performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity to changes in interest
rates and its influence on the Group’s profitability.

The majority of the Group’s loan contracts and other financial assets and liabilities that bear interest are either
variable or contain clauses enabling the interest rate to be changed at the option of the lender. The Group
monitors its interest rate margin and consequently does not consider itself exposed to significant interest rate
risk or consequential cash flow risk.

Interest rate sensitivity

The Group manages fair value interest rate risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise
from adverse changes in market conditions. The Department of Financial Supervision conducts monitoring
of the Group’s current financial performance, estimates the Group’s sensitivity to changes in fair value interest
rates and its influence on the Group’s profitability.

The following table presents a sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk, which has been determined based on
“reasonably possible changes in the risk variable”. The level of these changes is determined by management

and is contained within the risk reports provided to key management personnel.

Impact on profit before tax based on asset values as at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate  Interest rate
+2% -2% +2% -2%
Financial assets:
Due from banks 184 (184) 1,417 (1,417)
Loans to customers 5,123 (5,123) 8,450 (8,450)
Investments held to maturity 128 (128) 204 (204)
Financial liabilities:
Due to banks (518) 518 (704) 704
Customer accounts (503) 503 (1,788) 1,788
Subordinated debt (2,539) 2,539 (4,869) 4,869
Net impact on profit before tax 1,875 (1,875) 2,745 (2,745)

CARTU BANK GROUP

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2011 (CONTINUED)

(in thousands of Georgian Lari)

Impact on equity:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate Interest rate
+2% -2% +2% -2%
Financial assets:
Due from banks 156 (156) 1,205 (1,205)
Loans to customers 4,355 (4,355) 7,183 (7,183)
Investments held to maturity 109 (109) 173 (173)
Financial liabilities:
Due to banks (440) 440 (599) 599
Customer accounts (428) 428 (1,520) 1,520
Subordinated debt (2.158) 2,158 (4,139) 4,139
Net impact on equity 1,594 (1,594) 2,303 (2,303)

Currency risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in for-
eign exchange rates. The Group is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency ex-
change rates on its financial position and cash flows.

The ALCO controls currency risk by management of the open currency position on the estimated basis of
Georgian Lari devaluation and other macroeconomic indicators, which gives the Group an opportunity to min-
imize losses from significant currency rates fluctuations toward its national currency. The Treasury Department
performs daily monitoring of the Group’s open currency position with the aim to match the requirements of
the National Bank of Georgia.

The Group’s open positions by the major currencies in which it holds the assets and liabilities are presented below:

GEL USD EUR Other December
USD 1= EUR 1= currency 31, 2011
GEL1.6703  GEL 2.1614 Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the NBG 12,228 12,099 2,348 114 26,789
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 15,312 = 167 15,479
Due from banks 11,616 15,514 342 129 27,601
Loans to customers 114,383 134,369 7,400 - 256,152
Investments available-for-sale 322 = = = 322
Investments held to maturity 6,414 = = = 6,414
Other financial assets 393 354 103 78 928
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 146,356 177.648 10,193 488 333,685
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks 55 25,942 1 - 25,998
Customer accounts 17,414 53,748 6,094 50 77,306
Other financial liabilities 18 14 - - 32
Subordinated debt = 126,970 = = 126,970
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 17,487 206,674 6,095 50 230,306
OPEN BALANCE SHEET POSITION 127,869 (29,026) 4,098 438
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GEL USD EUR Other December
USD 1 = EUR 1= currency 31,2010
GEL1.7728  GEL 2.3500 Total
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with the NBG 13,347 7,703 1,418 87 22,555
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss - 2,696 - 205 2,901
Due from banks 65,792 11,084 12,243 159 89,278
Loans to customers 81,561 316,951 9,577 - 408,089
Investments available-for-sale 245 - - - 245
Investments held to maturity 18,147 - - - 18,147
Other financial assets 743 = = = 743
TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 179,835 338,434 23238 451 541,958
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Due to banks 55 52,470 14,121 - 66,646
Customer accounts 26,831 47,786 9,842 311 84,770
Other financial liabilities 432 - - - 432
Subordinated debt - 242,51 - - 242,512
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 27,318 342,768 23963 311 394,360
OPEN BALANCE SHEET POSITION 152,517 (4,334) 725 140

Currency risk sensitivity

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the USD against the GEL.
5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.

Impact on net profit and equity based on asset values as at December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
GEL/USD GEL/USD GEL/USD GEL/USD
+5% -5% +5% -5%
Impact on profit or loss before tax 1,410 (1,410) 216 (210)
Impact on equity 1,199 (1,199) 184 (184
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Limitations of sensitivity analysis

The above tables demonstrate the effect of a change in a key assumption while other assumptions remain unchanged.
In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It should also be noted that these sensi-
tivities are non-linear, and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated or extrapolated from these results.

The sensitivity analyses do not take into consideration that the Group’s assets and liabilities are actively managed.
Additionally, the financial position of the Group may vary at the time that any actual market movement occurs.
For example, the Group’s financial risk management strategy aims to manage the exposure to market fluctua-
tions. As investment markets move past various trigger levels, management actions could include selling in-
vestments, changing investment portfolio allocation and taking other protective action. Consequently, the actual
impact of a change in the assumptions may not have any impact on the liabilities, whereas assets are held at
market value in the consolidated statement of financial position. In these circumstances, the different meas-
urement bases for liabilities and assets may lead to volatility in shareholder equity.

Other limitations in the above sensitivity analyses include the use of hypothetical market movements to demon-
strate potential risk that only represent the Group’s view of possible near-term market changes that cannot be
predicted with any certainty; and the assumption that all interest rates move in an identical fashion.

Price risk

Price risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices
whether those changes ate caused by factors specific to the individual security or its issuer or factors affecting
all securities traded in the market. The Group is exposed to price risks of its products which are subject to
general and specific market fluctuations.

The Group manages price risk through periodic estimation of potential losses that could arise from adverse
changes in market conditions and establishing and maintaining approptiate stop-loss limits and margins and
collateral requirements. With respect to undrawn loan commitments the Group is potentially exposed to a loss
of an amount equal to the total amount of such commitments. However, the likely amount of a loss is less
than that, since most commitments are contingent upon certain conditions set out in the loan agreements.

Operational risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to
financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but it endeavors to manage these risks
through a control framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks. Controls include effective seg-
regation of duties, access, authortization and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.

29. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end, the group converted subordinated loan from related party, FinService-XXI LTD,
in the amount of GEL 11,701 thousand to share capital.






